
SWARAJ SUITING LIMITED 
CIN-L18101RJ2003PLC018359 

Email ID – cs@swarajsuiting.com,Phone No.-09414112677 
Website- www.swarajsuiting.com 

 

Reg. Office – F-483 to F-487, RIICO Growth Centre, Hamirgarh, Bhilwara-311025, Rajasthan 

 

Date: 08/09/2025 

 

To,            

The Manager 

Listing & Compliance Department, 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited 

Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, Plot No. C/1, 

G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra, 

Mumbai- 400051. 

 

Company Symbol: SWARAJ                                         Series: SM                                                 ISIN: INE0GMR01016 

 

 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

 

Sub: Notice of the 22nd Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                

 

Notice convening the 22nd Annual General Meeting (“Notice”) and Annual Report of the Company for the 

financial year 2024-25, being sent to the members through electronic mode, are attached.  

 

The Notice and Annual Report are also available on the website of the Company and can be accessed using 

the below given links: 

 

Notice https://www.swarajsuiting.com/uploads/notices/22nd-agm-notice-2025.pdf 

Annual 

Report 

https://www.swarajsuiting.com/uploads/reports/Swaraj_Annual_Report_2024-25.pdf 

 

Kindly take the above information on your records. 

 

Thanking You, 

Yours Faithfully, 

 

For Swaraj Suiting Limited                             

 

 

 

Rahul Kumar Verma 

Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer 

M. No.-F12348 

 

Encl. – As above 

 

 

 

mailto:ID%20–%20cs@swarajsuiting.com
https://www.swarajsuiting.com/uploads/notices/22nd-agm-notice-2025.pdf
https://www.swarajsuiting.com/uploads/reports/Swaraj_Annual_Report_2024-25.pdf
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SWARAJ SUITING LIMITED 
CIN : L18101RJ2003PLC018359 

Registered Office: F-483-487, RIICO Growth Centre Hamirgarh, Bhilwara-311025, Rajasthan, India 

Tel. No. +91 9660630663, Website: www.swarajsuiting.com, Email- cs@swarajsuiting.com 

 

NOTICE OF THE 22nd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
To, 

The Members of  

SWARAJ SUITING LIMITED 

(CIN: L18101RJ2003PLC018359) 

 

Notice is hereby given that the 22nd Annual General Meeting of the Members of Swaraj Suiting Limited 

will be held on Tuesday, the 30th day of September, 2025 at 01.00 p.m. Indian Standard Time (IST), 

through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio-Visual Means (VC/OAVM) facility to the following business: 
 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1. To consider and adopt (a) the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2025 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and (b) the 

audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 

2025 and the reports of the Auditors thereon and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to 

pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-  

 

a) “RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2025 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to 

the members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 
 

b) “RESOLVED THAT the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2025 and the report of Auditors thereon, as circulated to the 

members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 
 

2. To appoint Mrs. Samar Khan (DIN:01124399) who retires by rotation as a Director and, in this 

regard, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Samar Khan (DIN: 01124399), who retires by rotation at this 

meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.” 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 

3. To ratify the remuneration of Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2026 and, in this 

regard, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions, if 

any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made there under (including any statutory 

modification(s) enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the remuneration, as approved by 

http://www.swarajsuiting.com/
mailto:cs@swarajsuiting.com
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the Board of Directors and set out in the statement annexed to this Notice, to be paid to the Cost 

Auditors appointed by the Board of Directors, to conduct the audit of cost records of the Company 

for the financial year ending March 31, 2026, be and is hereby ratified.”  
 

4. To appoint Secretarial Auditor and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or 

without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (including any statutory 

modification(s) or reenactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and basis the 

recommendation of the Board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Sanjay Somani, Practicing Company 

Secretary (M.No.: FCS 6958, C.P. No.:5270) be and is hereby appointed as a Secretarial Auditor of the 

Company for a term of 5 (five) consecutive financial years commencing from the financial year 

2025-26 to the financial year 2029-30, on such remuneration as may be fixed by the Board of 

Directors of the Company. 
 

 

 

 

 

Registered Office: 

F-483 to F-487, RIICO,  

Growth Center, Hamirgarh,  

Bhilwara-311025, Rajasthan 

CIN:L18101RJ2003PLC018359Website: 

www.swarajsuiting.com  

Email: cs@swarajsuiting.com 

Con. No. 9660630663 

               

 

By order of the Board of Directors 

For SWARAJ SUITING LIMITED 

 

 

Sd/- 

Rahul Kumar Verma 

Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer 

Bhilwara, September 08, 2025 
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Notes: - 

 

1.  The Company is listed with NSE on Emerge (SME) platform 

 

2. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to A statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102(1) of 

the Act, relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the AGM, is annexed hereto. Further, 

additional information as required under Listing Regulations and Circulars issued thereunder are 

also annexed. 

 

3. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has, vide its circular dated September 19, 2024, read 

together with circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, 

December 8, 2021, December 14, 2021, May 5, 2022, December 28, 2022 and September 25, 2023 

(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”), permitted convening the Annual General Meeting 

(“AGM” / “Meeting”) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), 

without physical presence of the members at a common venue. In accordance with the MCA 

Circulars and applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rules made 

thereunder and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements)Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), the AGM of the Company is being held 

through VC / OAVM. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company. 

 

4. Generally, a member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to 

attend and vote on a poll instead of himself / herself and the proxy need not be a member of the 

Company. Since this AGM is being held through VC / OAVM pursuant to the MCA Circulars, physical 

attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of 

proxies by the members will not be available for the AGM and hence, the Proxy Form and 

Attendance Slip are not annexed hereto. 

 

5. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM Facility, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice. 

 

6. Details of Directors retiring by rotation at this Meeting are provided in the “Annexure” to this Notice 

 

7. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled 

time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The 

facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on 

first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or 

more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 

Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on 

account of first come first served basis.  

 

8. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 

purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

9. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars 

issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 

the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be 

transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National 

Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the 

authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting system as well as 

venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

 

10.  In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the 

Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 

www.swarajsuiting.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. 



 

    
 

SSL 22nd AGM Notice | 4  

 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com respectively and the AGM Notice is 

also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

11. AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular dated September 19, 2024, read together with 

circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 8, 2021, 

December 14, 2021, May 5, 2022, December 28, 2022 and September 25, 2023 (collectively referred 

to as “MCA Circulars”) 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS 

UNDER: - 

 

The remote e-voting period begins on Saturday, 27th September, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on Monday, 

29th September, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 

thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the 

record date (cut-off date) i.e. Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The 

voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of 

the Company as on the cut-off date, being Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025. 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode 

 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 

account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update 

their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:  

 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with NSDL. 

1. For OTP based login you can click 

on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp.   

You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., 

Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on 

registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful 

authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein 

you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 

NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting periodor joining 

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 

mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” 
icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will 

prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 

under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-

Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will 

be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 

the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 

the meeting. 

 

3. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 

IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

 

4. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 

to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 

hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 

the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 

NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will 

be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 

the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 

the meeting.  

 

5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 

Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for 

seamless voting experience. 

 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with CDSL 

 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 

their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to 

reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to 

login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 

www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab 

and then user your existing my easi username & password. 

 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-

Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress 

as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting 

option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 

provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there 

is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 

Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ 
website directly. 

 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 

available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New 

System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user 

by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 

Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-

Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly 

access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.  
Individual Shareholders 

(holding securities in 

demat mode) login 

through their 

depository participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 

through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-

Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click 

on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site 

after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click 

on company name or e-Voting service provider-NSDL and you will be 

redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 

meeting. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User 

ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 

helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at toll 

free no.: 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 

helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800-

21-09911 

 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities 

in physical mode. 

 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 

under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 

using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 

electronically. 

 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 

 

Manner of holding shares i.e. 

Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or 

Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold 

shares in demat account with 

NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 

12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold 

shares in demat account with 

CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then 

your user ID is 12************** 

c) For Members holding shares 

in Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the 

company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 

then user ID is 101456001*** 
 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and 

cast your vote. 

 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to 

enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is 

communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. 

Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the 

.pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 

number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial 

password’.  
 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 

shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your 

password: 

 

(a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with 

NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

(b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available 

on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

(c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name 

and your registered address etc. 

 

(d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-

Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 

box. 

 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 

holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period 

and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”. 
3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of 

shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 

prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.    

General Guidelines for shareholders 

 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 

attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to 

the Scrutinizer by e-mail to somanics@gmail.com  with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board 

Resolution/ Authority letter etc. by clicking on “Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter” 
displayed under “e-voting” tab in their login. 

 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:somanics@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 

care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 

unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go 

through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders 

and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of 

www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or send a 

request to at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 

procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 

out in this notice: 

 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), 

AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cs@swarajsuiting.com.  

 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 

beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested 

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 

cs@swarajsuiting.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you 

are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting 

and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor procuring user id 

and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 

account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to 

update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-

Voting facility. 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:- 

 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 

above for remote e-voting. 

 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM facility 

and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not 

barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the EGM/AGM. 

 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. 

However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 

 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-

Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the 

NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to 

NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under 

“Join General meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:cs@swarajsuiting.com
mailto:cs@swarajsuiting.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 

Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the 

members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and 

Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the 

notice to avoid last minute rush. 

 

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeting. 

 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 

respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate 

any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in 

advance at least 7 days prior to the AGM mentioning their name demat account number/folio 

number, email id, mobile number at cs@swarajsuiting.com . The same will be replied by the 

company suitably. 

 

OTHER INSTRUCTIONS: 

 

1. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of Beneficial Owners as on 

Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025, are entitled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in this Notice.  

 

2. The remote e-voting period will commence on Saturday, 27th September, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. and ends 

Monday, 29th September, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding 

shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e. Tuesday, 23rd 

September, 2025, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL 

for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the shareholder, the shareholder shall 

not be allowed to change it subsequently.  
 

3. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share 

capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025. 
 

4. A member may participate in the meeting even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-

voting but shall not be allowed to vote again at the meeting. 
 

5. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners 

maintained by the depositories as on cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote 

evoting. 
 

6. M/s. Sanjay Somani & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Bhilwara has been appointed as 

the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 
 

7. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of e-voting at Annual General Meeting, 

download the votes cast at the AGM and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting 

in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company. Scrutinizer shall 

within two working days of conclusion of the meeting submit a consolidated scrutinizer report of 

the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in 

writing. 
 

8. The results along with the Scrutinizers Report shall be placed on the website of the Company and on 

the website of NSDL and also be immediately forwarded to NSE, Mumbai. 
 

9. All the Statutory Registers and Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the 

Statement is open for inspection by the members at the Regd. office of the Company on all working 

mailto:cs@swarajsuiting.com
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days, during business hours up to the date of the Meeting and will also be available, electronically, 

for inspection by the members during the AGM.. 
 

10.  The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Government of India has introduced ‘Green Initiative in 

Corporate Governance’ by allowing paperless compliance by the Companies for service of 

documents to their Members through electronic mode, which will be in compliance with Section 20 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder. 
 

11. The transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education & Protection Fund of the Central 

Government as required in terms of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the current 

Financial Year is not applicable. 
 

12. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent 

Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in 

electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with 

whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can 

submit their PAN to the Company or its Share registrars and Transfer Agents. 
 

13. Members who have not registered their email IDs are requested to register their email IDs with the 

Company’s Share Registrars and Transfer Agents. 
 

14. Members are requested to notify the change in their address to the company and always quote their 

folio number in all correspondence with the company. 
 

15. The Notice of the Annual General Meeting and Annual Report of the Company for the year ended 

31st March, 2025 has been uploaded on the Company’s website www.swarajsuiting.com and may be 

accessed by the members and also on the website of the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 

www.nseindia.com. 
 

16. Electronic copy of the Notice and the Annual Report for 2024-25 is being sent to all the members 

whose email IDs are registered with the Company / Depository Participants(s) for communication 

purposes. Further, in compliance with Regulation 36(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations, a letter 

providing the web-link, including the exact path, where Annual Report for the financial year 2024-

25 is available, is being sent to those members whose e-mail address is not registered with the 

Company / Registrar and Transfer Agent / Depository Participants / Depositories. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.swarajsuiting.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

 
ITEM NO. 03 

 
The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of Audit Committee has approved the appointment and 

remuneration of an amount not exceeding Rs.35,000/- (Rupees Thirty Five Thousand Only) for the 

financial year ending 31st March, 2026 payable to the Cost Auditor M/s. Avnesh Jain & Co., Cost 

Accountants to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the aforesaid financial year. In 

accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (the Rules), the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor as 

recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors has to be ratified by the 

members of the Company. 

 

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 

03 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor for the financial year 

ending 31st March, 2026. 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution.  

 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution, as set out in Item No. 03 of the Notice, for approval of 

the Members. 

 

ITEM NO. 04          

 

Regulation 24A of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) requires every listed entity to appoint a peer 

reviewed Company Secretary or a Firm of Company Secretary(ies) as a Secretarial Auditor on the basis 

of recommendation of the board of directors. 

 

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on August 20, 2025 has, considering the experience and 

expertise and on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, recommended to the members, 

appointment of Mr. Sanjay Somani, Practicing Company Secretary (M.No.: FCS 6958, C.P. No.:5270), as 

Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of 5 (five) consecutive financial years commencing from 

the financial year 2025-26 to the financial year 2029-30, on such remuneration as may be determined by 

the Board of Directors of the Company, from time to time. 

 

Mr. Sanjay Somani, Practicing Company Secretary, is a fellow member of the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) and has more than 25 years of experience in corporate secretarial practices. 

He entered the field of practice as Company Secretary in 2000. He also holds a Bachelor’s degree in 

Commerce. He was the Chairman of the Bhilwara Chapter of NIRC of ICSI in 2019. He has been a member 

of the Peer Reviewed Board of the ICSI.  

 

Mr. Sanjay Somani has consented to his appointment as Secretarial Auditor, if appointed, and has 

confirmed that he has subjected himself to peer review process of the ICSI and holds a valid certificate of 

peer review issued by the ICSI. Further, Mr. Sanjay Somani has confirmed that he is eligible for 

appointment as the Secretarial Auditor and has not incurred any disqualification specified by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India. 

 

The proposed remuneration to be paid to the Secretarial Auditor for the financial year 2025-26 is 

Rs.75,000/-. The said remuneration excludes applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses. The 

remuneration for the subsequent years of his term shall be fixed by the Board of Directors based on the 

recommendation of the Audit Committee of the Company. 
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In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations, the appointment of 

Secretarial Auditor is required to be approved by the members of the Company. Accordingly, approval of 

the members is sought by passing the Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of this Notice. 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution.  

 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution, as set out in Item No. 04 of the Notice, for approval of 

the Members. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Registered Office: 

F-483 to F-487, RIICO,  

Growth Center, Hamirgarh,  

Bhilwara-311025, Rajasthan 

CIN:L18101RJ2003PLC018359Website: 

www.swarajsuiting.com  

Email: cs@swarajsuiting.com 

Con. No. 9660630663 

               

By order of the Board of Directors 

For SWARAJ SUITING LIMITED 

 

 

Sd/- 

Rahul Kumar Verma 

Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer 

Bhilwara, September 08, 2025 
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Annexure to the Notice  

 

Details of Director(s) seeking re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting 

[under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]: 

 

Resolution/Item No. 02 

Name Mrs. Samar Khan 

DIN 01124399 

Date of Birth 13/05/1979 

Date of first appointment on 

the Board 

09/06/2003 

Qualification Hr. Secondary 

Brief Profile & Nature 

Expertise in specific 

functional areas 

Mrs. Samar Khan, aged 46 years, promoted the Swaraj as a Director and 

thereafter was appointed as Whole Time Director (WTD) of the 

Company in January, 2021. She has gained over 22 years of working 

experience in the textile industry. She is looking the office 

administration matters and managing internal affairs of the business.  

 

Terms & Conditions of 

appointment/reappointment 

In terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 Mrs. Samar 

Khan,who was re-appointed as WTD designated as Executive Director 

at the Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2023 is liable to 

retire by roatation 

Remuneration proposed to 

be paid 

As per existing approved terms of appointment 

Remuneration last drawn 

(including sitting fees, if any) 

(FY2024-25) 

Rs.78 Lakh 

Shareholding in the 

Company as on 31/03/2025 

3,68,400 Equity Shares 

Relationship with other 

Directors & KMPs 

Wife of Mr. Mohammed Sabir Khan, Managing Director and mother of 

Mr. Nasir Khan, WTD of the Company.  

Other Companies in which 

he/she is a director 

(excluding section 8 

companies & Private 

companies)  

None 

Chairperson/ Membership of 

the Statutory Committee(s) 

of Board of Directors of the 

Company 

For details, please refer to the Director’s Report 

Chairperson/ Membership of 

the Committee(s) of Other 

Boards (excluding section 8 

companies & Private 

companies) 

Nil 

Number of meetings of the 

Board attended during the 

year 

FY 2024-25: 100% (15 meetings held) 

Listed entities from which he 

has resigned in the past 

three years 

Nil 
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CHAIRMAN STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

It gives me great pleasure to present the 22nd Annual Report of your 
Company. I extend my sincere gratitude to you for your continued 
trust, support, and investment in our journey. I am proud to report 
that FY 2024–25 was yet another landmark year—marked by 
record-breaking performance, strategic progress, and unwavering 
commitment to sustainable growth.

Thanks to the successful execution of our expansion strategy, we 
achieved our highest-ever sales and earnings in FY25. Revenue rose to ₹ 416.57 crore, reflecting a growth of 30.35% over the previous year. Our EBITDA increased by an impressive 64.38% to ₹ 75.02 crore, and Profit After Tax stood at ₹ 33.32 crore. Our Export revenue recorded at ₹ 22,54 Crore during the year. These robust financials 
underscore the effectiveness of our entrepreneurial approach, market 
responsiveness, and sustainability-focused initiatives.In line with our long-term vision, we undertook significant capacity 
expansion & new projects during the year:

•	 Neemuch Unit-1 (Jhanjharwara, Madhya Pradesh):

	 Installation of 72 Air Jet Looms, enhancing our weaving 
capacity by 1.23 crore meters of fabric per annum.

	Commissioning of an Indigo Dyeing Range for denim 
processing, with a capacity of 72 lakh meters per annum.

•	 Neemuch Unit-2 (Village Soniyana, Tehsil Jiran, Madhya 
Pradesh):

	Commissioning of our first Spinning Project, comprising 
22,656 spindles with an installed capacity of 7,344 tons 
per annum.

Furthermore, the Company has also commissioned a new Cotton 
Processing Unit at Neemuch Unit-1, with an installed capacity of 2.40 
crore meters of fabric per annum. Commercial operations for this unit 
began in July 2025.These developments significantly strengthen our backward and forward integration, operational efficiency, and ability to serve a 
wider customer base.

As we move forward, your Company is well positioned to sustain its 
growth momentum in FY 2025-26 and beyond. We are committed to 

operating with integrity, transparency, and adherence to the highest 
standards of corporate governance.

We remain optimistic about the long-term prospects of the Indian 
textile industry. With its inherent competitive advantages, the sector 
is poised for robust growth both domestically and globally. We aim 
to seize these opportunities by leveraging the right technology, the 
right raw materials, the right talent, and most importantly, the right 
attitude.

I would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to our employees, 
whose dedication and hard work continue to be the foundation of 
our success. I also extend my gratitude to our esteemed Board of 
Directors for their valuable guidance, to our customers, vendors, and 
bankers for their unwavering support, and our shareholder for their 
enduring belief in our vision.

Together, we will continue to build a stronger, more resilient, and 
future-ready organization.

Warm Regards,

Mohammed Sabir Khan

Chairman and Managing Director
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors are pleased to present the Company’s 22nd Annual Report and the Company’s audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.
FINANCIAL RESULTSThe Company’s financial performance (standalone and consolidated) for the year ended March 31, 2025 is summarized below:

STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED

₹ lakh ₹ lakh
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24

Revenue from operations 41656.84 31958.84 41656.84 31958.84

Other Income 179.55 592.27 179.55 592.27Profit before depreciation, finance cost, exceptional items & tax 
expenses

7501.63 4563.60 7501.63 4563.60

Less: Depreciation/ Amortization / Impairment 1135.92 800.52 1135.92 800.52Profit before finance cost, exceptional items & tax expenses 6365.71 3763.08 6365.71 3763.08

Less : Finance Cost 1905.78 1323.64 1905.78 1323.64Profit before exceptional items & tax expenses 4459.93 2439.44 4459.93 2439.44

Less- Exceptional Items 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00Profit before tax expenses 4459.93 2439.44 4459.93 2439.44

Less: -Tax expenses

- Current Tax 638.08 579.00 638.08 579.00

- Deferred Tax 490.20 40.83 490.20 40.83

Profit for the year 3331.65 1819.61 3331.65 1819.61

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND THE STATE OF COMPANY’S 
AFFAIRS 

The highlights of the company’s performance (standalone) for the 
year ended March 31, 2025 are as under:

•	 Revenue from operations increased by 30.35 % to ₹ 41,656.84 
lakh

•	 PBDIT increased by 64.38 % to ₹ 7501.63 lakh
•	 Profit Before Tax increased by 82.83 % to ₹ 4459.93 lakh
•	 Net Profit increased by 83.10 % to ₹ 3331.65 lakh 
OPERATIONS

Your Directors are pleased to report that, your company have recorded 
highest standalone revenue of Rs.41,656.84 lakh from operations in 
current year as compared to Rs. 31958.84 lakh in the previous year, with a significant growth of 30.35 %,  the consolidated revenue as 
same as standalone revenue.

The Company has recorded highest export revenue of Rs.2254 Lakh in the current fiscal year, up from Rs.320.23 Lakh in the previous year, 
marking a notable increase. The export volume has risen to 11.93 
Lakh mtr., compared to 1.71 Lakh mtr. in the previous year. Exports constitute 5.41% of the total revenue of the Company.
Your Directors are pleased to report that as a result of higher revenue from 
the operations, optimum capacity utilization and thrust on value addition products the Company has registered significant growth as under:The operating profit (PBITDA) of the Company has increased to 
Rs.7501.63 lakh in the current year under review as compared to Rs.4563.60 lakh in the previous year, a significant growth of about 64.38%.The Cash profit (PBDT) of the Company for the current year has 
increased to Rs.5595.85 lakh as against  Rs.3239.96 lakh, an impressive spike of about 72.71 % over the previous year.The Profit after Tax (PAT) of the Company has increased to Rs.3331.65 

lakh for the current year as against Rs.1819.61 lakh in the previous year and registered a significant upsurge of about 83.10 %.
DIVIDENDTo strengthen the financial position and funding to the ongoing 
projects of the Company, no dividend is recommended by the Board for the financial year 2024-25.
TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Board of Directors of your company has decided not to transfer 
any amount to the reserves for the year under review. 

UPDATE ON EXAPNSION PLANsDuring the financial year 2024–25, the Company undertook significant 
capacity enhancement initiatives as part of its strategic expansion 
plan. At Neemuch Unit-1 (located at B-24 to B-41, Industrial Area, 
Jhanjharwara, Neemuch, Madhya Pradesh), the Company successfully 
Installed 72 Air Jet Looms, adding a weaving capacity of 1.23 crore 
meters of fabric per annum and also Commissioned one Indigo 
Dyeing Range line for denim processing, with a production capacity 
of 72 lakh meters of fabric per annum. Commercial production of both 
the projects were commenced in July 2024. 

In addition to above expansion plans, the Company commissioned its first Spinning Project consisting of 22,656 spindles, with an annual 
installed capacity of 7,344 tons per annum at Neemuch Unit-2 (Survey 
No. 93/2, 96/1, 98.6, 103/1, &amp; 104, Village Soniyana, Tehsil Jiran, 
District Neemuch). 

Furthermore, the Company has also commissioned a new Cotton 
Processing Unit at Neemuch Unit-1, with an installed capacity of 2.40 
crore meters of fabric per annum. Commercial operations for this unit 
began in July 2025.These expansion as well as new projects mark a significant step 
toward enhancing the Company’s overall production capabilities and 
are aligned with our long-term growth objectives.



                                                                                                                                                        
  ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

                                                                                                         4

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Capital structure of the Company as on 31.03.2025 as follows:

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 42,02,00,000/- 
(Rupees Forty-Two Crore Two Lakh only) consisting of 4,20,20,000 
(Four Crore Twenty Lakh Twenty Thousand) Equity Shares of Rs. 
10/- (Rupees Ten) each. 

The Issued, subscribed and Paid up Share Capital of the Company 
is Rs.22,01,82,600 (rupees twenty two crore one lakh eighty two 
thousand six hundred) divided into 2,20,18,260 (two crore twenty 
lakh eighteen thousand two hundred sixty) Equity Shares of  Rs.10/- 
each.During the year under review, your Company has reclassified the 
Authorized Share Capital of the Company from Rs. 42,02,00,000/- 
(Rupees Forty-Two Crore Two Lakh only)  consisting of 2,20,20,000 
(Two Crore Twenty Lakh Twenty Thousand) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- 
(Rupees Ten) each and 2,00,00,000 (Two Crore) Preference Shares of 
Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each to Rs. 42,02,00,000/- (Rupees Forty-Two 
Crore Two Lakh only)  consisting of 4,20,20,000 (Four Crore Twenty 
Lakh Twenty Thousand) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.” 
in its Annual General Meeting held on  September 30, 2024.

The Company have issued and allotted 76,18,000 Warrants convertible 
into equity shares of face value of Rs.10/- each, at a premium of 
Rs.36.16/- per warrant in the ratio of one equity share for every one 
warrant on preferential basis pursuant to In-principle approval of 
National Stock Exchange vide  NSE/LIST/36000 dated July 07, 2023, 
out of which conversion of total 38,01,000 warrants were outstanding 
at the end of the FY 2023-24. Now all outstanding warrants converted 
into equity shares during the year and Company obtained the Listing 
as well as Trading Approval of such equity shares.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS The consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared 
in accordance with relevant Accounting Standards issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and form part of this 
annual report. A statement containing the salient features of the 
Company’s subsidiaries, associate and joint venture Company in 
the prescribed form AOC-1 is enclosed as Annexure-1 to the Annual 
Report.

DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your company has not accepted 
or renewed any deposit within the meaning of Section 73 of the 
Companies Act 2013 and the rules made there under.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

As on March 31, 2025, the Company have one associate company which details as follows-

S 
No

Name and address of the Company CIN/ GLN
Holding/ 

Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of 
shares 

held

Applicable 
section

1

Modway Suiting Private Limited (Formerly known 
as Cyan Textile Private Limited)
470, Industrial Area, Biliya Khurd,  Pur Road, 
Bhilwara-311001

U18108RJ1986PTC003788 Associate 41.06
Section 2(6) 

of Companies 
Act, 2013

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement referred to in clause (c) of sub-section (3) 
of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors’ 
Responsibility Statement, your Directors state that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the 
year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable accounting standards 
read with requirements set out under Schedule III of the Act 
have been followed and there are no material departures from 
the same; 

(b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies as 
mentioned in notes to the Financial statements have been 
selected and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at March 31, 2025 and of the profit of the company for year ended on that 
date; 

(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

(d) the Directors have prepared annual financial statements have 
been prepared on a going concern basis; 

(e) the Directors have laid down internal financial control to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and operating effectively; and

(f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance 
with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems 
were adequate and operating effectively.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THEIR MEETINGs & KMPs

I. Constitution of the Board

 The Board of directors are comprising of total 6(Six) Directors, 
which includes 3 (Three) Independent Directors. The Chairman 
of the Board is Promoter and Managing Director. The Board members are highly qualified with the varied experience in the relevant field of the business activities of the Company, which plays significant roles for the business policy and 
decision-making process and provide guidance to the executive 
management to discharge their functions effectively.

II. Board Independence Our definition of ‘Independence’ of Directors is derived from 
Regulation 16 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Section 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company is having 
following independent directors:

i) Mrs. Annie Zuberi

ii) Mrs. Amreen Shiekh

iii) Mr. Ramesh Agarwal

As per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Independent 
Directors shall not be liable to retire by rotation.
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III. Declaration by the Independent Directors

 All the Independent Directors have given their declaration of 
Independence stating that they meet the criteria of independence 
as prescribed under section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Further that the Board is of the opinion that all the independent directors fulfill the criteria as laid down under the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 during the 
year 2024-25.

IV. Directors liable to retire by rotation

 In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and in terms of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mrs. 
Samar Khan (DIN: 01124399), Whole Time Director of the 
Company is liable to retire by rotation at ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee has recommended 
their re-appointment.

V. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

 Followings are the Directors and KMPs of the Company:

S 
No

Name of Directors/KMPs Designation/Nature of 
Directorship 

1 Mr. Mohammed Sabir Khan
Chairman cum Managing 
Director

2 Mr. Nasir Khan Executive Director

3 Mrs. Samar Khan Executive Director

4 Mrs. Amreen Sheikh Independent Director

5 Mrs. Annie Zuberi Independent Director

6 Mr. Ramesh Agarwal Independent Director

7 Mr. Rahul Kumar Verma
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

8 Mr. Prakash Chandra Jain Chief Financial officer
VI. Meetings and Attendance of the Board

 The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on company/business policy and strategy apart from other Board business. 
The notice of Board meeting is given well in advance to all the Directors.  The Board met 15 (fifteen) times in the Financial Year 2024-25. The frequency of and the quorum at these meetings were in conformity 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard-1.

 Attendance of each director in board meeting as follows:

Date of Meeting Name of Directors
Mr. Mohammed 

Sabir Khan
Mr. Nasir Khan

Mrs. Samar 
Khan

Mrs. Annie 
Zuberi

Mrs. Amreen 
Sheikh

Mr. Ramesh 
Agarwal

04.05.2024 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

01.06.2024 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

07.08.2024 Yes Yes Yes No Yes No

27.08.2024 Yes Yes Yes No Yes No

07.09.2024 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

10.09.2024 Yes Yes Yes No Yes No

08.11.2024 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

14.11.2024 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

23.12.2024 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

07.01.2025 Yes Yes Yes No Yes No

08.01.2025 Yes Yes Yes No Yes No

14.01.2025 Yes Yes Yes No No No

15.01.2025 Yes Yes Yes No No No

16.01.2025 Yes Yes Yes No No No

27.03.2025 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

VII. Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

 As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under the 
Companies Act, 2013, a separate meeting of the Independent 
Directors of the Company was held on 23rd December, 2024 
to review the performance of Non-Independent Directors 
(including the Chairman) and the entire Board. The Independent 
Directors also reviewed the quality, content and timelines of the flow of information between the Management and the Board and 
its Committees which is necessary to effectively and reasonably 
perform and discharge their duties.

VIII. Company’s policy on Directors’ Appointment and 
Remuneration

 The Policy of the Company on Directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive at tributes, independence of a Director and other 
matters provided under section 178(3), uploaded on company’s 
website. 

 h t t p s : / / w w w. s wa ra j s u i t i n g . c o m / u p l o a d s / re p o r t s /NOMINATION%20AND%20REMUNERATION%20POLICY.pdf
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IX. Annual Evaluation by the Board

 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation 17 (10) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for 
evaluation of the performance of individual Directors and the 
Board as a whole. Based on the criteria the exercise of evaluation 
was carried out through a structured process covering various 
aspects of the Board functioning such as composition of the 
Board and committees, experience & expertise, performance of specific duties & obligations, attendance, contribution at 
meetings & Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future 
growth of company, etc. The performance evaluation of the 
Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by 
the Independent Director. The performance of the Independent 
Directors was carried out by the entire Board (excluding the 
Director being evaluated). The Directors expressed their 
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

COMMITTEEs OF THE BOARD

The Company has following committees:

I. Audit Committee

 The Company has constituted Audit Committee as per 
requirement of section 177 of the Companies Act 2013 and 
Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The terms 
of reference of Audit Committee are broadly in accordance with 
the provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Companies 
Act, 2013. The Audit Committee comprises of the following 
Directors of the Company:

S. N. Name of Director Nature of 
Directorship 

Designation 
in Committee

1 Mrs. Amreen Sheikh
Independent 
Director

Chairperson

2 Mrs. Annie Zuberi
Independent 
Director

Member

3
Mr.   Mohammed Sabir 
Khan

Managing 
Director

Member During the financial year 2024-25, the Audit Committee met 5 (five) times on 04.05.2024, 30.05.2024, 07.09.2024, 14.11.2024 
and 27.03.2025.

II. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

 The Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee in accordance with section 178 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee comprises of the following 
Directors of the Company:

S. N. Name of Director Nature of 
Directorship 

Designation in 
Committee

1 Mrs. Annie Zuberi
Independent 
Director

Chairperson

2 Mrs. Amreen Sheikh
Independent 
Director

Member

3 Mr.   Ramesh Agarwal
Independent 
Director

Member

3
Mr.  Mohammed 
Sabir Khan

Managing 
Director

Member

 During the financial year 2024-25, the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee met 2 (two) times on 07.09.2024 and 
23.12.2024.

III. Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee

 The Company has constituted a Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee in accordance with section 178 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Committee 
considers and approves various requests regarding annual 
report and to redress complaints of the shareholders. The 
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee comprises the following 
Directors:

S. N. Name of Director Nature of 
Directorship 

Designation 
in Committee

1 Mrs. Annie Zuberi
Independent 
Director

Chairperson

2 Mrs. Amreen Sheikh
Independent 
Director

Member

3
Mr.  Mohammed 
Sabir Khan

Managing Director Member

3 Mr.  Nasir Khan
Whole Time 
Director

Member During the financial year 2024-25, the Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee met on 27.03.2025.

IV. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

 The Company has constituted a CSR Committee in accordance 
withsection135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The CSR Committee 
comprises the following Directors:

S. N. Name of Director Nature of 
Directorship 

Designation 
in Committee

1 Mrs. Amreen Sheikh
Independent 
Director

Chairperson

2
Mr.  Mohammed Sabir 
Khan

Managing 
Director

Member

3 Mr.  Nasir Khan
Whole Time 
Director

Member During the financial year 2024-25, the CSR Committee met on 
07.08.2024.

V. MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

 During the year under the 21st Annual General Meeting of the 
Company hold on 30th September, 2024.

DEMATRIALISATION OF SECURITIES:

The Company’s Equity Shares are admitted in the system of 
Dematerialization by both the Depositories namely NSDL and CDSL. 
As on report date all 2,20,18,260 equity shares dematerialized 
through depositories viz. National Securities Depositories Limited 
and Central Depositories Services (India) Limited, represents whole 100% of the total issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the 
Company. The ISIN allotted to your Company is INE0GMR01016. 

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

The Company has appointed Bigshare Services Private Limited as its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent .The Registered Office of Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. situated at Office No. S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle 
Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri 
(East), Mumbai-400093.
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AUDITORs AND AUDITORs’ REPORT

I. SATUTORY AUDITOR 

 M/s KARP & Co. (formerly known as Alok Palod & Co.), Chartered 

Accountants, were appointed as the Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years, at the 21st AGM held on September 30, 2024. The Auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as the Auditors of the Company.  The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, 
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. The Notes to the financial statements referred in the Auditors’ Report are 
self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

II. INTERNAL AUDITORS

 Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (asamended), the Board 
of Directors, on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, 
of the Company, has appointed M/s Dinesh Agal & Co, Chartered 
Accountants, Bhilwara, [ICAI Firm Registration No.- 016806C], as the Internal Auditors of the Company for the financial year 
2024-25.

 The Internal Audit Finding/s and Report/s submitted by the said Internal Auditors, during the financial year, to the Audit 
Committee and Board of Directors of the Company, do not contain any adverse remarks and qualifications hence do not call 
for any further explanation/s by the Company.

III. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

 The Board had appointed M/s Sanjay Somani & Associates, 
Company Secretaries, Bhilwara, [ICSI Membership No.FCS-6958 & Certificate of Practice No. 5270], to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 
is annexed and marked as Annexure-2 to this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, 
reservation disclaimer. 

 In accordance with the recent amendments to the Listing 
Regulations, the Board has recommended to the members for 
their approval, appointment of M/s Sanjay Somani & Associates, 
Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company, for a term of 5 (five) consecutive financial years commencing from the financial year 2025-26 to the financial year 2029-30

IV. COST AUDITORS

 As per the requirement of the Central Government and pursuant 
to section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies 
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended from time 
to time, the Board has appointed M/s Avnesh Jain & Company, 
Cost Accountants (FRN: 101048), being eligible, to conduct Cost Audit of the Company for the financial year 2025-26 at a remuneration of Rs.35,000/- subject to ratification by members. 
Accordingly, the proposal has been included in the notice to 
ratify the remuneration being offered.

 In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records 
and Audit) Rules, 2014 the Company has maintained the Cost 
Records. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLs

The Company has laid down Internal Financial Controls that include a risk-based framework to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, safeguarding of its assets, accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records and assurance on reliability of financial 
information. The Company maintains adequate and effective internal 
control systems commensurate with its size and complexity. An 
independent internal audit function is an important element of the 
Company’s internal control systems. This is executed through an 
extensive internal audit programme and periodic review by the 
management and the Audit Committee.The Audit Committee has satisfied itself on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal financial control systems laid down by the management. The Statutory Auditors have confirmed the adequacy of the internal financial control systems over financial reporting.
Further, details of internal control systems are given in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis which  forms part of this 
Annual Report.

CREDIT RATING

During the year 2024-25, Crisil Ratings Limited has assigned & reaffirmed the ratings for Bank Loan facilities of the Company. The details of latest Credit Rating assigned & reaffirmed to the Company 
are given below: -

Amount 
(Rs. in crore)

Credit Rating

Total bank Loan facilities 340.00
Crisil BBB | Stable | Reaffirmed

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

In pursuance of Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations and with the objective of 
pursuing the business in a fair and transparent manner by adopting 
the highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and 
ethical behavior and to encourage and protect the employees who 
wish to raise and report their genuine concerns about any unethical 
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of Company’s Code 
of Conduct, the Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy. The 
policy has been disclosed on the website of the Company under the 
link:https://www.swarajsuiting.com/uploads/reports/Whistle%20Blower%20Policy-%20Vigil%20Mechanism.pdf
PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

In view of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 
2015 the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of 
Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in securities by the 
Directors and designated employees of the Company. The details of 
the Insider Trading Policy have posted on the website of the Company 
at following link: 

(Link: https://www.swarajsuiting.com/uploads/reports/Policy%20on%20Insider%20Trading.pdf )
The Code requires Trading Plan, pre-clearance for dealing in the 
Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company 
shares by the Directors and the designated employees while in 
possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to 
the Company and during the period when the Trading Window is 
closed. However, there were no such instances in the Company during 
the year 2024-25.

RISK MANAGEMENT  A well-defined risk management mechanism covering the risk 
mapping and trend analysis, risk exposure, potential impact and risk 
mitigation process is in place. The objective of the mechanism is to 
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minimize the impact of risks identified and taking advance actions 
to mitigate it. The mechanism works on the principles of probability 
of occurrence and impact, if triggered. A detailed exercise is being 
carried out to identify, evaluate, monitor and manage both business 
and non-business risks.

The Board of Directors of the Company and the Audit Committee shall 
periodically review and evaluate the risk management system of the 
Company so that the management controls the risks through properly defined network. Head of Departments shall be responsible for 
implementation of the risk management system as may be applicable 
to their respective areas of functioning and report to the Board and 
Audit Committee.

The Company has not made Risk Management Committee, but the 
Board of Directors and Audit Committee is looking after the Risk 
Management of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which has occurred between the end of the financial year and date of this report.
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) 
ACT, 2013

In line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women 
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, the 
Company has in place a Policy and constituted an internal complaints 
committee to redress complaints regarding sexual harassment of 
women at workplace. The committee has informed following status 
of complaints during the year:-

(a)  Number of complaints of sexual harassment received during the 
year : Nil

(b)  Number of complaints disposed-off during the year : Nil

(c)  Number of complaints pending for more than 90 days : Nil

(d)  Number of complaints pending at the end of the year : Nil

MATERNITY BENEFIT The Company affirms that it has duly complied with all provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, and has extended all statutory benefits to eligible women employees during the year.
ANNUAL RETURN

Kindly take note that the Annual Return as required under Section 92 
of the Companies Act, 2013 will be made available on the website of 
the Company after conclusion of the AGM in below link:

(Link: https://www.swarajsuiting.com/annual-return)

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
UNDER SECTION 186

Details of loans, guarantees or investments, if any, covered under 
the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are given in the notes to the financial statements 
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH 
RELATED PARTIES:All related party transactions that were entered during the financial 
year, were on the arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course 
of business and do not attract the provisions of section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Thus, disclosure in form AOC-2 is not required.

All Related Party Transactions were placed before the Audit 
Committee for approval. A policy on the related party Transitions 
was framed & approved by the Board and posted on the Company’s 
website at below link:https://www.swarajsuiting.com/uploads/reports/POLICY%20ON%20RELATED%20PARTY%20TRANSACTIONS.pdf
However, you may refer to Related Party Transactions, as per the Accounting Standards, in the notes forming part of the financial 
statements.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORTS

As per Regulation 34 (e) read with schedule V of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), the 
management Discussion and Analysis Report of the  Company for the 
year ended is set out in this Annual Report as “Annexure-3.”

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company treats its “Human Resources” as one of its most 
important assets. Your Company continuously invests in attraction, 
retention and development of talent on an ongoing basis. The 
Company thrust is on the promotion of talent internally through job 
rotation and job enlargement.

RATIO OF THE REMUNERATION OF EACH DIRECTOR TO THE 
MEDIAN EMPLOYEE’S REMUNERATION AND PARTICULARS 
OFEMPLOYEES

Pursuant to provision of section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the details of employees given in 
the “Annexure-4”.

The information as required to be provided in terms of Section 197 
(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed as 
“Annexure-5” to this Report.

COMPLIANCES OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDSThe Board of Directors confirms that the Company, has duly complied 
and is in compliance, with the applicable Secretarial Standard/s, namely Secretarial Standard-1 (‘SS-1’) on Meetings of the Board of Directors and Secretarial Standard -2 (‘SS-2’) on General Meetings, during the financial year 2024-25 ended 31st  March 2025.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, 
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO.

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption 
and foreign exchange earnings and outgo stipulated under Section 
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the 
Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed herewith as “Annexure-6”.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESOPOSIBILITY

In pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules 
framed there under a CSR Policy to ensure Social Responsibilities has 
been adopted. 

The CSR Policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 
following link: (https://www.swarajsuiting.com/uploads/reports/CSR%20Policy.pdf)
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In view of the profits and turnover of the company, your Company 
was required to undertake CSR projects during the year 2024-25 
under the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the rules made their under. As part of its initiatives under “Corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR)”, the Company has undertaken various 
activities, which are in accordance with CSR Policy of the Company 
and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The Annual Report on 
CSR activities is annexed herewith as “Annexure-7”.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING 
CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTUREDuring the year under review there has been no such significant 
and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in 
future.

DISCLOSURE FOR FRAUD AGAINST THE COMPANY

In terms of provision of section 134(3)(ca) of the Companies Act, 
2013, There were no instances of fraud which are reported by 
Auditors of the Company under section 143(12) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 to the Audit Committee.

CODE OF CONDUCT

Regulation 17(5) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 requires listed 
companies to lay down a Code of Conduct for its directors and senior 
management, incorporating duties of directors as laid down in the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct 
for all Directors and Senior Management of the Company and same is 
hosted on the website of the company at following link:

(https://www.swarajsuiting.com/uploads/reports/Code%20of %20Conduct%20for%20Directors%20&%20Senior%20Management%20Personnel.pdf)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company being listed on the EMERGE Platform of National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited, therefore pursuant to Regulation 
15(2)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, Regulation 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Part C of Schedule V 
relating to compliance of Corporate Governance shall not applicable 
to the Company. Further, The Company need not require complying with requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II pursuant 
to Regulation 27(1) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and submitting Compliance Report 
on Corporate Governance on quarterly basis pursuant to Regulation 
27(2) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. Hence no Corporate Governance Report is required 
to be disclosed with Annual Report. 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

During the year under review your Company enjoyed cordial 
relationship with workers and employees at all levels.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review there is no change in the nature of the 
business and commercial activities of the company.

INVESTORS EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUNDDuring the financial year 2024-25 ended on 31st March 2025 under 
review, there were no amount/s which is required to be transferred to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. As such, no specific details are required to be given or provided.
DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCESSING PENDING 
UNDER THE IBC 2016

During the year under review no application was made, further no 
any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016 against the Company. 

DIFFERENCE IN VALUATION

During the year under review there was no case of one time settlement with financial institution so the details of difference between 
amount of the valuation done at the time of one time settlement and 
the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial 
Institutions are not applicable to the company.

SUSPENSION OF TRADING

There was no occasion wherein the equity shares of the Company have been suspended for trading during the financial year 2024-25.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

It is our belief that we have a leadership team with right experience 
and skills to take us into next decade of growth. We continue to build 
our skills and add appropriate resources, which help the company 
deliver solid results in the years to come. The Board of Directors also 
take this opportunity to extend its sincere thanks for co-operation and 
assistance received by the Company from the Central - State - Local 
Government and other regulatory authorities, Bankers, Members, 
Customers, Suppliers.

The Directors also record their appreciation of the dedication of 
all the employees at all levels for their support and commitment to 
ensure that the Company continues to grow.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mohammed Sabir Khan
Chairman and Managing Director

Bhilwara, September 08, 2025
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ANNEXURE – 1

FORM AOC-1(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies or joint ventures

PART-A  SUBSIDIARIES

Sr. No. Particulars Description

1 Name of Subsidiary -

2 Date of acquisition -

3 Reporting Period -

4 Exchange rates as at year end -

5 Average Exchange Rates -

6 Share Capital (including share application money) -

7 Reserve & Surplus -

8 Total Assets -

9 Total Liabilities -

10 Investments -

11 Turnover -

12 Profit / (loss) before taxation -

13 Provision for tax (including deferred tax) -

14 Profit / (loss) after taxation -

15 Proposed Dividend -

16 % of shareholding -

Note

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations.- Nil

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been ceased to be subsidiary/ liquidated/ sold during the year.- Nil

PART-B Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement Pursuant to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, related to Associate companies 
and Joint Ventures 

Sr. No. Particulars Description

Name of Associates or Joint Ventures Modway Suiting  Private Limited

1 Latest audited Balance Sheet date 31.03.2025

2 Date on which the associate or Joint Venture was associated or acquired 27.08.2020

3 Shares of Associate held by the company on year end

-No. of Shares 2052974

-Amount of Investment in Associate or Joint Venture Rs. 2,61,75,420.00

-Extent of Holding (in percentage) 41.06

4 Description of how there is significant influence Note 1

5 Reason why the associate / joint venture is not consolidated N.A.

6 Networth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet 3,59,96,448.34
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7 Profit or Loss for the year
i. Considered in Consolidation 16,23,670.99

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation NIL

Note

1. There is a significant influence due to percentage (%) of voting power
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.-Nil

3. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.-Nil

As per our report even date

For KARP and Co.
(Formerly known as Alok Palod & Co.)
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 018061C)

Alok Palod      Mohammed Sabir Khan        Prakash Chandra JainPARTNER      Managing Director                    Chief Financial Officer
Membership No.:417729
Place: BHILWARA
Date: 30.05.2025      Nasir Khan                                  Rahul Kumar Verma
UDIN: 25417729BMGYNN4930   Whole Time Director                 Company Secretary   
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ANNEXURE – 2 

Form No.: MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Swaraj Suiting Limited
F-483 TO F-487, RIICO Growth Centre 
Hamirgarh, Bhilwara (Raj.)- 311025.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliances of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices 
by Swaraj Suiting Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.Based on our verification of Swaraj Suiting Limited’s, books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the Management, Whereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 (‘Audit Period’) complied with 
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial 
year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, 
Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the 
Companies Act and dealing with client;

(vi) Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) were not applicable to the Company under the financial year under report: -
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999,The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employees Benefits) Regulation, 2014 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefit and Sweat Equity) Regulation 2021; (Not applicable to the Company 

during the reporting period under audit)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company 
during the reporting period under audit) &

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;(Not applicable to the Company during 
the reporting period under audit)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable 
to the Company during the reporting period under audit)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations 2011 

(vii) As confirmed and certified by the management, there is no sectoral law specifically applicable to the Company based on their Sector/ 
Business.
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards on Board and General Meetings (SS-1 & SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 as applicable on Small Company listed with the SME platformand listing agreement entered into by 
the company with National stock exchange limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as 
mentioned above.

We further report that, during the year under review:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent 
Directors as per the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The changes, if any, in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notices were given to all directors and committee members to schedule the Board Meetings and Committee meetings, agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before 
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.Based on the records and process explained to us for compliances under the provisions of other specific acts applicable to the Company, we 
further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events/actions having major bearing on company’s affairs in pursuance 
of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc.

Place  : Bhilwara                                                                    For: Sanjay Somani & Associates

Date : 01/09/2025

UDIN : F006958G001135272

Sd/-

Sanjay Somani

Proprietor

M. No.: FCS6958

COP No.: 5270

P R Certificate No. 7118/2025

Note : This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A which forms an integral part of this report. 
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Annexure - A

To,
The Members,
Swaraj Suiting Limited
F-483 TO F-487, RIICO Growth Centre 
Hamirgarh, Bhilwara (Raj.)- 311025.

The above report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these secretarial records based on the audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. 
We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of treatment of various tax liabilities and payment thereof, compliance of the applicable accounting standards, financial records and Books of Accounts of the company as the same is subject to the statutory audit 
being performed by the independent auditors.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules, and regulations and happening 
of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with 

which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7. We do not take any responsibility for any person if taking any commercial, financial or investment decision based on our secretarial audit 
report as aforesaid and they need to take independent advice or decision as per their own satisfaction.

Place  : Bhilwara                                                                    For: Sanjay Somani & Associates

Date : 01/09/2025

UDIN : F006958G001135272

Sd/-

Sanjay Somani

Proprietor

M. No.: FCS6958

COP No.: 5270

P R Certificate No. 7118/2025
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ANNEXURE 3

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

GLOBAL ECONOMYThe global economy registered a growth of 3.3% in 2024, signalling a 
degree of stability despite restrained momentum. However, 2025 has 
brought about increased volatility, shaped by evolving trade policies, 
rising geopolitical tensions, and enduring structural macroeconomic challenges. A significant inflection point occurred in April 2025, when 
the US introduced near-universal tariffs, prompting widespread 
retaliatory measures. These developments disrupted global trade patterns, triggered corrections across financial markets, and 
contributed to a rise in global bond yields.

In this shifting global landscape, GDP growth is projected to slow to 2.8% in 2025, with a modest recovery anticipated at 3.0% in 2026.Inflation has remained more persistent than earlier forecasts suggested. Headline inflation is expected to average 4.3% in 2025, driven primarily by rising input and logistics costs. Core inflation 
continues to be elevated, particularly in the services sector, 
complicating the monetary policy decisions of central banks globally.

(Source: IMF World Economic Outlook, April 2025)

INDIAN ECONOMYIndia’s economy grew by 6.5% in 2024-25, according to the National Statistics Office’s second advance estimates released in February 
2025. This growth was achieved despite ongoing global uncertainties, 
including trade tensions and geopolitical disruptions, and highlights 
the resilience of India’s domestic demand as well as the effectiveness 
of its calibrated policy interventions.

India’s GDP Growth 

2022-23 2023-24
2024-25 

(Esimated)7.6 % 9.2 % 6.5 %
(Source: https://www.pib.gov.in/ PressReleasePage.
aspx?PRID=2106921)

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

GLOBAL TEXTILE INDUSTRY

The global textile market is positioned for continued expansion, 
supported by shifting consumer references, rapid technological 
progress, and evolving global dynamics. The market is expected at 
USD 696.16 Billion in 2025. Looking ahead, the market is projected to reach USD 915.96 Billion by 2029, at a CAGR of 7.1% over the forecast 
period. This strong growth trajectory underscores the industry’s 
adaptability, resilience, and capacity to thrive amidst changing 
economic, technological, and environmental conditions. As economic 
development reshapes consumption patterns, demand continues 
to grow across segments such as apparel, home furnishings, and 
technical textiles.

The rise of fast fashion and the proliferation of e-commerce platforms have amplified demand for a diverse range of fabrics, prompting 
manufacturers to invest in more agile and innovative production 
systems that can rapidly respond to evolving market needs and 
reduce time-to-market across product categories.

Sustainability has emerged as a key priority, with increasing 
consumer preference for environmentally responsible products. 
This is driving the development and adoption of textiles made from 

recycled materials, organic fibres, and renewable resources. As the 
sustainability imperative gains momentum, it is expected to reshape production practices and guide investment flows across the textile 
value chain.The industry is also undergoing a significant structural transformation 
powered by the rise of smart textiles and the adoption of advanced 
digital manufacturing technologies. Smart textiles, or e-textiles, are 
engineered to respond to environmental stimuli such as temperature, 
pressure, and humidity. These intelligent fabrics incorporate sensors 
and conductive materials to enable functionalities such as health 
monitoring, thermal regulation, and data transmission. Their adoption 
is gaining momentum, particularly in high-performance segments 
including sportswear, healthcare, and defence, where innovation and 
functionality are critical differentiators.

Simultaneously, the integration of Industry 4.0 technologies including automation, robotics, artificial intelligence, and advanced processes 
like 3D knitting and digital printing is reshaping manufacturing operations. These innovations are enhancing production efficiency, 
enabling on-demand manufacturing, reducing material waste, and 
facilitating greater product customisation. AI-driven analytics are 
also increasingly instrumental in optimising supply chains, enhancing 
quality control, and improving responsiveness to shifting market 
dynamics.

(Source: https://www.thebusinessresearchcompany.com/report/
textileglobal-market-reportResearch and Markets – Global Textiles 
Market)

INDIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRYIndia’s textile industry is one of the most significant contributors to the national economy accounting for approximately 2.3% of GDP, 13% of industrial production, and over 8% of total exports. With a legacy 
deeply rooted in cultural heritage and a strong base across natural and synthetic fibres, the industry spans the full value chain from 
farm to fashion. It is also among the largest employers in the country, 
offering direct employment to more than 45 Million people, with the 
majority engaged in rural and semi-urban clusters, especially within 
MSMEs.

(Source: https://www.textilesphere.com/2024/11/indian-textile-
industry-outlook-2025.html)

India ranks among the top global producers of cotton, jute, silk, and man-made fibres, with a diversified manufacturing ecosystem 
encompassing both traditional handloom sectors and modern, 
technology-enabled textile clusters. This sector’s inclusive growth 
model bolstered by national initiatives such as Skill India, Make in 
India, and Startup India, continues to drive employment generation 
and foster entrepreneurship across the country.

(Source: https://www.pib.gov.in/PressReleasePage.
aspx?PRID=2117470)

Man-Made Fiber Industry

The Indian MMF industry continues to evolve in alignment with global 
trends favouring synthetic and blended textiles. India retained its 
position as the world’s second largest producer of MMF, with output reaching approximately 1,700 Million kg of fibres and 3,400 Million kg of filaments in 2024-25. Demand for polyester-viscose (PV) blends 
remained robust due to their affordability, durability, and versatility 
in diverse end-use applications.
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The government’s strategic push under the Rs.10,683 Crore 
Production- Linked Incentive (PLI) scheme for MMF-based apparel 
and technical textiles has catalysed investment across the value 
chain. Global sourcing preferences are increasingly favouring reliable, 
vertically integrated suppliers like India, with new markets opening 
in Eastern Europe, Latin America, and Central Asia.

(Source:https://ministryoftextiles.gov.in/sites/default/files/Indian%20Manmade%20fibre%20textile%20industry.pdfhttps://
texmin.nic.in/pli-scheme-textiles)

Cotton Yarn Industry

India retained its position as the world’s largest cotton producer, 
with 2024-25 production estimated at 302.25 Lakhs bales (170 kg 
each), supported by favourable climatic conditions and stable input 
costs. The cotton yarn industry saw a measured recovery, aided by 
improved cotton price stability, better export realisation, and rising 
demand from both the domestic weaving sector and international 
buyers.ICRA forecasts indicate 6-8% revenue growth for the spinning industry in 2024-25, backed by a 4-6% increase in volumes and improved 
spreads. Key export markets such as China, Bangladesh, and the US 
continued to constitute the bulk of India’s cotton yarn exports, while 
domestic consumption gained traction, supported by higher fabric 
and garment production. India’s well-integrated spinning ecosystem, availability of skilled labour, and inherent cost efficiencies further 
reinforce its global competitiveness in the cotton yarn segment.

(Source: https://www.fashionatingworld.com/new1-2/india-cotton-
production-to-rise-to-302-25-lakh-bales-in-2024-25-season

https://economictimes.indiatimes.com/industry/cons-products/
garments-/-textiles/indian-cottonspinning-industry-expected-to-
recover-in-fy25-icra-report/articleshow/111782851.cms)

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVE

Impact of Make in India on the Textile Industry

The Make in India initiative has been instrumental in revitalising 
India’s textile and apparel industry by  attracting investment, 
upgrading infrastructure, and driving modernisation across the value 
chain. Through a series of targeted schemes and policy interventions, 
the government has substantially improved the sector’s global 
competitiveness, especially in MSME driven manufacturing clusters.

(Source: https://www.makeinindia.com/sector/textiles-and-
garments)

PM Mitra Parks

To address infrastructure gaps and enable end-to-end integration, 
the PM MITRA (Mega Integrated Textile Region and Apparel) Parks 
scheme is establishing seven world-class parks across Gujarat, 
Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh, Tamil Nadu, Karnataka, Uttar Pradesh, 
and Telangana. With a total budget of Rs.4,445 Crore, these parks are 
designed to reduce logistics costs, attract FDI, and strengthen India’s 
global supply chain linkages.

(Source: https://pib.gov.in/PressReleasePage.
aspx?PRID=1806659https://www.texmin.nic.in/pm-mitra)

Textile Cluster Development Scheme (TCDS)

TCDS aims to enhance the operational viability of textile clusters 
by providing shared infrastructure and service linkages. Backed by 
Rs.853 Crore, the scheme has created over 1.22 Lakhs employment 
opportunities as of 2024-25, facilitating economies of scale and better 

access to technology.

(Source: https://texmin.nic.in/tcdshttps://texmin.nic.in/
documents/annual-reports)

Production-Linked Incentive Scheme

The PLI Scheme for Textiles, with an outlay of Rs.10,683 Crore, has 
been introduced to incentivise large-scale manufacturing of MMF and technical textiles. It offers financial incentives to companies investing 
in high-value segments such as performance fabrics and functional 
apparel, with the objective of enhancing

exports and creating employment opportunities in advanced product 
categories.

(Source: https://texmin.nic.in/pli-scheme-textileshttps://pib.gov.in/
PressReleasePage.aspx?PRID=1780271)

Samarth Initiative

The Samarth Scheme focuses on skill development to bridge the 
industry’s workforce gaps. In 2023-24, Rs.115 Crore was sanctioned 
under the scheme, with over 3.82 Lakh individuals trained and 2.97 Lakhs (77.74%) successfully placed as of March 2025. The 
programme is preparing the textile workforce for a more automated 
and technology-driven future.

(Source: https://samarth-textiles.gov.in/https://pib.gov.in/
PressReleasePage.aspx?PRID=1996074)

National Technical Textiles Mission  (NTTM)

With a budget of Rs.1,480 Crore for a period from 2020-21 to 2025-
26, the NTTM is strengthening India’s position in the global technical 
textiles market. The mission focuses on R&D, education, and export 
promotion in high-value segments like medical, agro, and geo textiles. 
As of January 2025, 168 projects worth Rs.509 Crore had been 
approved under this initiative.

(Source: https://technicaltextiles.gov.in/nttmhttps://pib.gov.in/
PressReleasePage.aspx?PRID=2002059)

Union Budget 2025-26 Measures

Reinforcing the sector’s upward trajectory, the Union Budget 2025-26 raised the Ministry of Textiles’ allocation by 19% to Rs.5,272 Crore. Key measures included the introduction of a five-year Cotton Mission 
aimed at improving extra-long staple (ELS) cotton productivity, a 
customs duty exemption on select shuttle-less looms to support 
weaving modernisation, and an increase in duties on knitted fabric 
imports to safeguard domestic manufacturers. The budget also 
extended support to handicrafts by lengthening export timelines 
and allowing duty-free input additions, while MSMEs were further 
empowered through enhanced credit access and the launch of 
Bharat Trade Net, a digital platform designed to streamline export 
documentation.

(Source: https://www.indiabudget.gov.in/doc/eb/sbe83.pdfhttps://www.financialexpress.com/business/budget/budget-2025-
textile-sector-highlights-3371251 https://www.indiabudget.gov.in)

COMPANY OVERVIEW

The Company operates its manufacturing activities across three 
strategically located units in India:

•	 Bhilwara Unit: Located at F-483 to F-487, RIICO Growth Centre, 
Hamirgarh, District Bhilwara, in the state of Rajasthan.

•	 Neemuch Unit-1: situated at B-24 to B-41, Industrial Area, 
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Jhanjharwara, District Neemuch &

•	  Neemuch Unit-2: located at Survey No. 93/2, 96/1, 98.6, 103/1, 
& 104, Village Soniyana, Tehsil Jiran, District Neemuch, in the 
state of Madhya Pradesh.

At Bhilwara Unit, the Company currently operates 123 Air Jet Looms 
with a combined weaving capacity of 2.10 crore meters of fabric per 
annum. We have consistently focused on modernizing and expanding 
our infrastructure to remain aligned with industry trends. The 
facilities are equipped with state-of-the-art, automated machinery designed to maximize productivity, enhance operational efficiency, 
and improve cost competitiveness.

In FY 2022–23, the Company commenced commercial production at 
its Denim and Finishing Processing Plant at Neemuch Unit-1. This 
facility has an annual capacity to process approximately 1.80 crore meters of finished fabric and is supported by two Indigo Dyeing Range lines, offering significant backward integration benefits, particularly 
for the Bhilwara Unit.

In line with our strategic expansion roadmap, several capacity 
enhancement initiatives were undertaken during FY 2024–25:

•	 At Neemuch Unit-1, an additional 72 Air Jet Looms were installed, 
adding 1.23 crore meters of weaving capacity per annum and A 
new Indigo Dyeing Range line was also commissioned at this 
unit, with a processing capacity of 72 lakh meters of fabric per 
annum. Commercial production for both projects commenced in 
July 2024.

•	 Further, strengthening our backward integration capabilities, the Company successfully commissioned its first Spinning Project at 
Neemuch Unit-2, comprising 22,656 spindles with an installed 
capacity of 7,344 tons of yarn per annum in March, 2025.

In addition, a new Cotton Processing Unit was commissioned at 
Neemuch Unit-1, with an installed capacity of 2.40 crore meters of fabric 
per annum. Commercial operations for this unit began in July 2025.These new projects and expansions represent a significant leap 
forward in the Company’s integrated manufacturing capabilities. 
They are aligned with our long-term strategic objectives of enhancing production capacity, improving operational efficiency, and creating 
sustainable value for all stakeholders.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

•	 The Company has recorded total revenue from operations 
during the Financial year 2024-25 of Rs.41,656.84 Lakh against the total revenue of Rs.31,958.84 Lakh in the previous financial year 2023-24, with a significant growth of 30,.35%, of the 
consolidated as well as standalone revenue.

•	 The Total expenses of the Company during the financial year 
2024-25 is Rs.37,376.46 Lakh against the expenses of  Rs. Rs.30,111.68 Lakh in the previous financial year 2023-24.

•	 The operating profit (PBITDA) of the Company has increased to 
Rs.7501.53 lakh in the current year under review as compared to Rs. 4563.60 lakh in the previous year, a significant growth of about 64.38%.

•	 The Cash profit (PBDT) of the Company for the current year has 
increased to Rs.5595.85 lakh as against  Rs.3239.96 lakh, an impressive spike of about 72.71 % over the previous year.

•	 The Profit after Tax (PAT) of the Company has increased to 
3331.65 lakh for the current year as against Rs.1819.61 lakh in the previous year and registered a significant upsurge of about 83.10 %.

SEGMENT WISE AND PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE

The company’s primary’s business segment is manufacturing of 
denim/synthetic/cotton fabric although the company engaged in 
trading of yarn, Grey & Finished Fabric and weaving on job work basis. 

(Rs. in lakh)

Revenue from operationsRevenue from operations 2024-252024-25 2023-242023-24

Finish FabricFinish Fabric

-Domestic-Domestic 33778.6033778.60 26666.1826666.18

-Export-Export 2254.002254.00 320.23320.23

Grey SalesGrey Sales 3745.753745.75 1553.251553.25

Yarn SalesYarn Sales        170.28       170.28
              

1097.001097.00
Sale of Service (Job Work)Sale of Service (Job Work) 1708.211708.21 2322.192322.19

OPPORTUNITIES

•	 Rising global demand and geopolitical shifts are creating 
favourable supply chain opportunities, positioning India better 
than China, Vietnam, and Bangladesh

•	 India’s expanding domestic market, fuelled by a growing middle 
class, e-commerce growth, and Gen Z consumption trends, is 
driving strong demand.

•	 The Government of India has come up with a number of initiatives 
to support the textile industry, such as the PLI Scheme and Mega 
Integrated Textile Region and Apparel (MITRA) Parks. This will 
enable the textile industry to become globally competitive, boost 
employment generation and attract investments in value added 
segments.

•	 The UK imports USD 20 billion in textiles, with India holding a 5% 
share. The FTA strengthens India’s position against Bangladesh 
and Vietnam.

•	 Government of India has introduced Kasturi Cotton, a cleaner, 
greener alternative. This eco-friendly cotton from India is 
designed to reduce environmental impact while meeting the 
growing demand for sustainable cotton for fashion brands.

•	 Rapid advancements in automation, AI, and smart textile 
innovation are reshaping the manufacturing landscape. Digital 
platforms are enabling greater end-to-end supply chain visibility, enhancing quality control, and driving operational efficiency. 

THREATS

•	 The Indian textile sector is challenged by supply chain fragmentation and inefficient logistics systems. Delays in raw 
material procurement and inconsistent quality further heighten 
production costs.

•	 Complex regulations and trade barriers, including burdensome 
export procedures and limited FTAs, disadvantage India against 
competitors like Vietnam in major markets.

•	 Fast fashion and rising textile waste pose growing concerns, with 
India’s recycling market still small despite expected growth amid 
global waste projections for 2030.

•	 Tariff barriers and other restrictive trade practices by certain 
countries poses challenges for growth and competitiveness of 
Indian Textiles Industry

•	 India faces strong competition from countries like Bangladesh 
and Vietnam, which offer lower labour costs and enjoy referential 
trade agreements with key importing nations. To remain 
competitive, Indian manufacturers must prioritise productivity 
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enhancement, design and innovation capability development, and 
the strengthening of global brand visibility.ghteningenvironmental

•	 With tightening environmental regulations worldwide, textile 
manufacturers are under increasing pressure to comply with 
sustainability norms. This includes reducing water consumption, managing chemical effluents, minimising waste, and ensuring 
responsible sourcing. Compliance is not only critical from 
a regulatory perspective but also essential to meeting the 
expectations of environmentally conscious consumers and 
international buyers.

RISK AND CONCERNSThe Company’s processes for risk identification, assessment, 

mitigation, and reporting are supported by an effective framework 
for risk management. Indian Textile Industry continues to face stiff 
competition from China, Bangladesh, Taiwan and other emerging 
economies. The relative competitiveness of Industry is dependent 
upon the raw cotton prices, exchange rates and prevalent interest 
rates regime. The primary raw material for the manufacturing of yarn and finished fabric is cotton which is an agriculture produce. Its 
supply and quality are subject to forces of nature i.e. Monsoon. Any increase in the prices of raw cotton will make the things difficult for 
the Textile Industry resulting weak demand and thin margins. Thus 
availability of raw cotton at the reasonable prices is crucial for the textile industry. Any significant change in the raw cotton prices can 
affect the performance of the Industry.

There are certain key risks associated with our Company. Such risks are stated in the table below along with our mitigation strategies for 
curbing the same:

Risk Impact Mitigation Strategies 

Global Economic Risk 
A downturn in the Global Economy can 
adversely affect products’ demand. 

We have been actively engaged in widening our 
geographical presence 
while continuously expanding our product portfolio. Not being bound to a specific region and a basket of products 
to offer from gives us the ability to face such downturns. 

Competition risk
Increased competition can reduce
returns on investment, market share and profit margins. The Company manages this risk by emphasising value 

addition, quality, customer service, product variety and cost efficiency and increasing customer base.
Raw material priceinflation risk Fluctuation in cotton prices can adversely 

impact our Company. 
The Company strictly monitors cotton prices and 
maintains a disciplined stocking policy to prevent price 
volatility.

Customer concentration risk
Losing a major client or over-reliance on a 
few customers can lead to revenue loss.

The Company consistently works to expand its customer 
base by targeting various geographies.

Reputation risk
Delayed payments or poor product quality 
may reduce stakeholder trust and harm 
operations.

The Company ensures product quality and timely 
delivery, aligning with stakeholder expectations by
enforcing strict control processes.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIO

Pursuant to Schedule V to the SEBI Listing Regulations, details of significant changes (i.e. a change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in Key Financial Ratios and 
any changes in Return on Net Worth of the Company (on standalone 
basis) including explanations therefore are given below:

Particular 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Debtors Turnover 04.99 05.20

Inventory Turnover 03.62 04.03

Interest Coverage Ratio 03.78 03.01

Current Ratio 01.21 01.30

Debt Equity Ratio 01.28 01.65Operating Profit Margin 15.21% 11.71%Net Profit Margin 08.00 % 05.25 %
Return on Net-worth 21.84% 17.15%

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUECY 

The Company has put in place an adequate system of internal control 
commensurate with its size and nature of business to safeguard and 
protect from loss, unauthorized use or disposition of its assets. All the 
transactions are properly authorized, recorded and reported to the 
Management. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting 
Standards for properly maintaining the books of accounts and reporting financial statements. The internal auditor of the Company 

checks and verifies the internal control system and monitors 
them in accordance with the policy adopted by the Company. The 
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, Statutory Auditor and Department Heads are appraised of the internal audit finding and 
corrective action is taken thereon. The audit observations and the 
management’s responses are placed before the Audit Committee. We believe that our internal financial control system provides reasonable assurance that our internal financial control is designed effectively 
and is operating as intended.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company had cordial and harmonious industrial relations at all 
levels of organizations. The company believes that the industry has 
the tremendous potential to impact the society, nation and the world 
positively. Its employees are major stakeholders and their efforts have 
direct stake in the business

prospectus of the organization. The employees have extended a very 
productive cooperation in the efforts of the management to carry the 
company to greater heights. The Company considers employees as 
their biggest competitive advantages. The Company takes initiative like 
training and development for its people to increase the performance. 
The Company has taken various steps to improve and enhance skill of 
its people. The industrial relations remained cordial in our plant. The 
Company has continued to give special attention to human resources 
and overall development. The strengths of the Company’s workplace 
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at the end of financial year was 732. This includes both skilled and 
unskilled manpower.

ENVIRONMENT AND SAFETY

The need for environmentally clean and safe operations is 
company’s key priority. The Company policy requires the conduct 
of all operations in such a manner so as to ensure the safety of all 
concerned, compliance of statutory and industrial requirements for 
environment protection and conservation of natural resources to the 
extent possible.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements made in this Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

may contain certain ‘forward-looking statements’ based on various 
assumptions about the Company’s present and future business 
strategies and the environment in which it operates. Actual results 
may differ substantially or materially from those expressed or implied 
due to risks and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties include 
the effects of economic and political conditions in India and abroad, 
volatility in interest rates and the securities market, new regulations 
and government policies that may impact the Company’s businesses, 
as well as the ability to implement its strategies. The information 
contained herein is as of the date referenced, and the Company 
does not undertake any obligation to update these statements. The 
Company has obtained all market data and other information from 
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sources believed to be reliable or its internal estimates, although its accuracy or completeness cannot be guaranteed.

ANNEXURE – 4

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

Information required under Section 197of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014

A. Ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company and the percentage 
increase in remuneration for the financial year 2024-25 is as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name Designation
Remuneration 

for the year 
2024-25 (In Rs.)

Remuneration 
for the year 
2023-24  (In 

Rs.)

% increase in 
Remuneration

Ratio of 
remuneration 
of Director to 

the Median 
remuneration

1.
Mr. Mohammed 
Sabir Khan

Chairman& 
Managing Director

78,00,000 66,00,000 18.18 41.70 : 1

2 Mrs. Samar Khan Whole Time Director 78,00,000 66,00,000 18.18 41.70: 1

3. Mr. Nasir Khan Whole Time Director 78,00,000 66,00,000 18.18 41.70: 1

4. Mrs. Annie Zuberi
Independent 
Director

75,000* 95,000* - -

5.
Mrs. Amreen 
Sheikh

Independent 
Director

1,05,000* 1,00,000* - -

6.
Mr.  Ramesh 
Agarwal

Independent 
Director

45,000* 60,000* - -

B. Percentage increase in remuneration of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary for the financial year 2024-25 is as 
follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name Designation
Remuneration for 
the year 2024-25 

(In Rs.)

Remuneration 
for the year 

2023-24 (In Rs.)

% increase in 
Remuneration

Ratio of 
remuneration 
of Director to 

the Median 
remuneration

1.
Mr. Prakash 
Chandra Jain

Chief Financial Officer 5,35,000 4,88,000 09.63 02.86 : 1

2
Mr. Rahul Kumar 
Verma

Company Secretary 10,72,071 8,76,000 22.38 05.73 : 1

Notes-

1. The aforesaid details are calculated on the basis of remuneration paid during the financial year 2024-25.
2. *Remuneration in the form of Sitting Fees to attend meetings as an Independent Director

3. Median remuneration of the Company for all the employees who were there in employment throughout the year (365 employees) is Rs.1,87,033/- for the financial year 2024-25.
4. The remuneration to Directors is within the overall limits of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

C. Percentage increase/ (decrease) in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2024-25: 2.72 % 
D. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 2025 : 732.

E. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the CompanyThe Company affirms that remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
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ANNEXURE –5

DETAILS OF TOP TEN EMPLOYEES IN TERMS OF REMUNERATION PAID

[As per Section 197(12) read with the rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

S. 
No.

Name
Designation/ 
Department

Annual 
Remune-

ration
Date of Joining

Qualifica-
tion

Expe-
rienc-e

Age
Permanent/ 
Contractual

Last 
Employme-nt

1
Mr. Mohammed Sabir 
Khan

Managing Director  7800000 01/08/2014*  B.Com. 25 51 Permanent -

2 Mr. Nasir Khan Executive Director 7800000 01/12/2016* 10+2 08 27 Permanent -

3 Mrs. Samar Khan Executive Director 7800000 01/08/2014* 10+1 21 46 Permanent -

4
Mr. Vijay Pal Singh 
Negi

Sales & Marketing 
Head

2100000 24/07/2023
B.Sc., MBA 

(Marketin-g)
19 42 Permanent RSWM LTD.

5 Ms. Aliya Khan General Manager 1800000 01/10/2018 B.Com. 06 25 Permanent -

6
Mohammed Aasim 
Pathan

Marketing  
Manager

12,99,960 16/09/2023

M.Tech. &
B.TECH. 

(In Textile 
Chemistry)

9 36 Permanent
Susvin Denim 

Pvt. Ltd.

7
Maitry Pankaj Bhai 
Shah

MIS Manager 12,00,000 19/02/2024 CA, M.Com. 5 27 Permanent
Arvind 
Limited

8 Mr. Rishabh Kothari Chief Engineer 11,40,000 01/05/2021 B. Tech 15 36 Permanent
MANOMAY 
TEX INDIA 
LIMITED

9
Mr. Rahul Kumar 
Verma

Company Secretary 10,72,071 01/01/2021
CS, M.Com.,
LLM, DLL

08 33 Permanent

MODWAY 
SUITING 
PRIVATE 
LIMITED

10 Mr. Manish Kumar
Product 

Development Head
10,20,000 01/09/2022

B.Tech., MBA 
(Operation 
Managem-

ent)

14 37 Permanent RSWM LTD.

Notes-

1. None of the employee was in receipt remuneration in excess of remuneration drawn by the Managing and Whole Time Directors and holding by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, 2 % or more of the paid -up capital of the Company. 
2. None of the employee was in receipt remuneration of Rs. 1,02,00,000/- or more for whole financial year and was in receipt remuneration of Rs. 8,50,000/-per month or more for a part of the financial year.
* Mr. Mohammed Sabir Khan re-appointed as Managing Director, Mrs. Samar Khan & Mr. Nasir Khan re-appointed as Executive Director of the 
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Company w.e.f. 01.01.2024. 

ANNEXURE 6

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO

(Pursuant to Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

PARTICULARS Current Year Previous Year

A: CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
The Company is continuously putting its efforts to improve energy 
management by way of monitoring energy related parameters on 
regular basis.

Electricity 
a.  Purchase Units (in Lakh) 

170.12 135.63

                Total Amount  (in Lakh) 1129.87 1052.47

       Rate/Unit (Amount in Rs)  6.65 7.75

b.  Own Generation - -

Through Diesel generator 

                 Unit (In lakh) - -

                 Unit Per ltr. of diesel oil - -

       Cost / Unit (Amount in Rs)   - -

B. Consumption per unit of production
              (Product Synthetic, Cotton etc. Fabrics)

                 Electricity unit/mtr. 00.62 00.47

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADOPTION AND INNOVATION
Expenditure incurred on technology absorption

Company is consistently investing in and importing advanced plant 
& machineries to upgrade & expand the technology and deliver value 
added products. It has been continuously enhancing the quality of 
its existing products while also developing new products from time 
to time. During the year the Company commissioned an expansion 
project in Weaving Division by installing 72 Air Jet looms, Denim 
Processing Division by installing one line of Indigo Dying Range 
and setting up Spinning Division with 22,656 spindles for cotton 
yarn enabling it to diversify and enter a new product portfolio and availability of raw material for finished fabric.  

Expenditure incurred on R & D (in lakh) R & D expenses cannot be segregated

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT GO.(in lakh)

        Foreign exchange earnings 2254.00 118.93

               Foreign exchange outgo 1728.44 3553.28

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mohammed Sabir Khan
Chairman and Managing Director

Bhilwara, September 08, 2025
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ANNEXURE 7

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPOSIBILITY ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken:

 The CSR activities of the Company are carried out directly and through contribution/donation made to other organisation/institution for the activities specified under Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has framed a CSR Policy in compliance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the same has been placed at the website of the Company i.e. www.swarajsuiting.com under the link “Investor Desk’---‘Policies’---CSR Policy”. As per CSR policy the Company endeavours to make CSR a key business process 
for sustainable development and continuously enhance shareholders wealth; it is also committed to its other stakeholders to conduct 
its business in an accountable manner that creates a sustained positive impact on society. Our Company’s CSR Committee believes that 
it is important for the organization to focus on philanthropic activities in terms of animal welfare, prevention from hunger & poverty, 
promotion of educational activities, empowering women, making available safe drinking water, setting up old age homes, environment 
protection, health care etc.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee

S. 
N.

Name of Director Designation/Nature of 
Directorship 

No. of meetings of CSR 
Committee held during the 

year

No. of meetings of CSR 
Committee attended during 

the year

1 Mrs. Amreen Sheikh
Chairperson
Independent Director

1 1

2
Mr.  Mohammed Sabir 
Khan

Member
Managing Director

1 1

3 Mr.  Nasir Khan
Member
Whole Time Director

1 1

3. Details of web-link where composition of CSR committee, CSR policy and CSR projects approved by the Board:

 CSR details are available under the link https://www.swarajsuiting.com/management-committee

4. Details of impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014:

 Not applicable

 Details of amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for the set off for the financial year:

 No Amount available for set off for the financial year.
5. 

(a) Average net profits of the Company as per Section 135(5):
Financial year Profit (₹ in lakh)
2021-22 609.58
2022-23
2023-24

761.37
2439.44

Total 3810.39Average profit of above said profit 1270.13

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135.
 (₹ in lakh)

25.40

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years. 0

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any. 0.00

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [6(b)+(c)-(d)] 25.40

7. (a) Details of CSR amount spent against the ongoing project for the financial year: No CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year.
(aa) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing project for  the financial year: :  Rs.25,50,000/-

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Expenses: :  Nil

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable :  Nil
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(d) Total amount spent for the financial year :  Rs.25,50,000/-

(e)  CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year

Total Amount       Spent 
for the   Financial 
Year. (₹ in lakh)

Amount Unspent ( Rs. in lakh)
Total Amount transferred 

to Unspent CSR Account as per sub 
section (6)  of  section  135.

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule VII as per second proviso to sub-

section (5)of section 135.

Amount.
Date of

 transfer. Name of the Fund Amount.
Date of 

transfer.
Rs.25.50 Lakh Nil N.A. N.A. Nil N.A.

(f)  Excess amount for set-off, if any:

Sl. 
No.

Particular Amount (₹ in lakh)
(a)  Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135. 25.40

(b) Total amount spent for the year Financial Year 25.50

(c) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [b-a] 00.10

(d)
Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Financial Years, 
if any

00.00

(e) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [c-d] 00.10

8. Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years : N.A.

9. Details of creation or acquisition of capital assets created or acquired through CSR amount spent in the Financial Year: No assets created or acquired through CSR amount spent in the financial year
10. Reason for unspent amount two percent of the average net profit as per Section 135(5):

 Company is not carrying any unspent amount for the Financial Year

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mohammed Sabir Khan
Managing Director
DIN:00561917

Date: September 08, 2025
Place: Bhilwara

For and on behalf of the CSR Committee

Amreen Sheikh
Chairperson

DECLARATION AS REQUIRED UNDER REGUALTION 34(3) OF THE SEBI (LISITNG OBLIGATION AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 
REGULATIONS, 2015All Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of Directors and Senior Management of Swaraj Suiting Limited for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025.

 (Mohammed Sabir Khan)
Place :Bhilwara                                                                                                                                                                                                              Managing Director
Date: September 08, 2025                                                                                                                                                                                                  DIN:00561917
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of M/S SWARAJ SUITING LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

OpinionWe have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements 
of  SWARAJ SUITING LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, and the statement of Profit and Loss and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information n (hereinafter referred to as “standalone financial statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give 
the information required by the Act in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025, its profit/loss and cash flows for the year ended 
on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ 
report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation 
of the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Company’s Annual Report but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does 
not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 
Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated 
in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, Profit/Loss and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified 
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
We also: 

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 
2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management. 

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of 
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
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that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 
(“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(i) We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(ii) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books.

(iii) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and 
the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

(iv) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. 

(v) On the basis of the written representations received from 
the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 
on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(vi) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 

separate Report in ‘Annexure B’. 
(vii) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s 

Report under section 197(16), In our opinion and 
according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors 
during the current year is in accordance with the provisions 
of section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any 
director is not in excess of the limit laid down under section 
197 of the Act. 

(viii) With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts 

including derivative contracts for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company.

iv. The management has represented that, to the best 
of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed 
in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in 
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

v. The management has represented, that, to the best of 
its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in 
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received 
by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly 
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

vi. Based on such audit procedures that have been 
considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that 
has caused us to believe that the representations 
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided 
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-
statement.

vii. No dividend have been declared or paid during the 
year by the company.

viii. Based on our examination which included test checks, 
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the company has used accounting software for 
maintaining its books of account which has a feature 
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same 
has operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during 
the course of our audit we did not come across any 
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. 

[Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by 
the company as per the statutory requirements for 
record retention.]

For KARP and Co. 
[Formerly known as Alok Palod & Co.] 
Chartered Accountants  
(FRN:  018061C)

Alok Palod  
PARTNER  
Membership No.: 417729 
UDIN : 25417729BMGYNM2738   
Place: BHILWARA  
Date: 30/05/2025
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Annexure ‘A’

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of Our Report on “Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”.

We report that:

(a)  (A)  the company is maintaining proper records showing full 
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 
Property, Plant and Equipment;

 (B)  The company is in the process of acquiring intangible 
assets (Software) so records related to same are properly 
maintained.

(b) As explained to us, Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification
(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than 

properties where the company is the lessee and the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment 
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both 
during the year.

(e) As explained to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are 
pending against the company for holding any benami property 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 
1988) and rules made there under.

(i) (a)  As explained to us, physical verification of inventory 
has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 
management. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancy of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory was noticed on physical verification of stocks 
by the management as compared to book records. 

(b) During the year company has been sanctioned/Renewed working capital limits in excess of five Crore rupees on 
the basis of security of current assets. As explained to us 
Company is regular in submission of quarterly statements 
to bank. As explained by the management and based on 
review of Stock statements submitted to bank. We are of 
the opinion that data provided in stock statement are as per best available quantities subject to physical verification. 
There is no material difference between stock statement 
submitted to bank and books of accounts, although minor 
difference can arise due to method of valuation, Physical verification, return of goods, shortage, wastage, ABC 
analysis of stock, Debit and credit notes and reconciliation 
of debtors and creditors. There are no material differences which require specific reporting.

(ii) During the year the company has not made investments in, 
nor provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans 
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other 
parties.

(iii) In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, 
provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act have 
been complied with. 

(iv) The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which 
are deemed to be deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 or 
any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the rules made there under.

(v) As per information & explanation given by the management, maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central 
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the 
Companies Act and such accounts and records have been so 
made and maintained.However,we have not, carried out a 
detailed examination of therecords to ascertain whether they 
accurate or complete.

(vi) (a)  According to the records made available to us, company is 
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including 
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state 
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of 
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other 
statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. According to 
the information and explanation given to us there were no 
outstanding statutory dues as on 31st of March, 2025 for a 
period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, 
there is no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that 
have not been deposited on account of any dispute 

(vii) According to the information and explanations given by the 
management, No transactions which are not recorded in the 
books of account have been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961.

(viii) (a)  In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given by the management, we are of the 
opinion that the company has not defaulted in repayment 
of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest 
thereon to any lender.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given by the 
management, theCompany is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender;

(c)  In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given by the Management, the Company has 
utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during 

 The year for the purposes for which they were obtained.

(d)  In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given by the Management, funds raised 
on short term basis have not been utilized for long term 
Purposes.

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given by the management, the company has 
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account 
of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates 
or joint ventures, 

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given by the management, the company has 
not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities 
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate 
companies.

(ix) (a)   The company has not raised money by way of initial public 
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
during the year. Company has not issued any Bonus Share 
during the year.
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     (b)  The company has made preferential allotment of 
convertible warrants into equity shares during the year.  

(x) (a)  According to the information and explanations given by 
the management, no fraud by the company or any fraud 
on the company has been noticed or reported during the 
year;

(b) There is no case, hence no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by 
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 
Central Government. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us 
by the management, no whistle-blower complaints had 
been received by the company during the year.

(xi) The company does not fall under the category of Nidhi Company, hence provisions specified in Nidhi rule, 2014 are not applicable 
to the company.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, all 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements, etc., 
as required by the applicable accounting standards;

(xiii) (a)  According to the information and explanations given by the 
management, the company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business in 
accordance with section 138 of Companies Act 2013;

(b)    We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors 
issued for the period under audit.

(xiv) On the basis of the information and explanations given to us, in 
our opinion during the year the company has not entered into 
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected 
with him under the provisions of section 198 of the Act.

(xv) (a)  In our Opinion and based on our examination, the 
Company is not required to be registered under section 
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 . 

(b) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the 
Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial 
or Housing Finance activities.

(c) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company 

is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the 
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India , hence 
para (c) and (d) is not applicable to the company.

(xvi) Based on our examination, the company has neither incurred cash losses in the current financial year nor in the immediately preceding financial year.
(xvii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during 

the year.

(xviii) In our opinion and on the basis of ageing report, financial ratios and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, no material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of audit report that company 
is capable of meeting its liabilities which exist at the date of 
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this 
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. 
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to 
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee 
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period 
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by 
the company as and when they fall due.

(xix)  In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount under 
sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, 
pursuant to any project, hence clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)
(b) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 are not 
applicable to the Company. 

For KARP and Co. 
[Formerly known as Alok Palod & Co.] 
Chartered Accountants  
(FRN:  018061C)

Alok Palod  
PARTNER  
Membership No.: 417729 
UDIN :  25417729BMGYNM2738    
Place: BHILWARA  
Date: 30/05/2025
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ANNEXURE ‘B’

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

OpinionWe have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of SWARAJ SUITING LIMITED as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on my / our audit. I / 
We conducted my / our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to 
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that I / we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial ReportingA company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is 
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
ReportingBecause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

For KARP and Co. 
[Formerly known as Alok Palod & Co.] 
Chartered Accountants  
(FRN:  018061C)

Alok Palod  
PARTNER  
Membership No.: 417729 
UDIN : 25417729BMGYNM2738    
Place: BHILWARA  
Date: 30/05/2025
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025  in lakhs

Particulars Note No. As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholder’s funds
Share capital 2 2,201.83 1,821.73

Reserves and surplus 3 13,053.40 8,347.30

Money received against share warrants 438.64

15,255.23 10,607.67

Share application money pending allotment
Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings 4 18,875.45 11,752.40

Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 5 623.29 133.10

Other long term liabilities

Long-term provisions 6 149.02 122.95
19,647.76 12,008.45

Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 7 7,908.88 5,753.03
Trade payables 8

(A) Micro enterprises and small enterprises

(B) Others 13,154.64 6,280.82

Other current liabilities 9 392.46 298.95

Short-term provisions 641.33 582.25

22,097.31 12,915.05

TOTAL 57,000.26 35,531.17

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property,Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets 10

Property,Plant and Equipment 26,131.15 7,569.72

Intangible assets 68.54 102.28

Capital work-in-Progress 1,277.29 6,916.42

Intangible assets under development

Non-current investments 11 261.75 261.75

Deferred tax assets (net)

Long-term loans and advances 12 345.77 263.45

Other non-current assets 13 2,236.17 3,579.22

30,320.68 18,692.84
Current assets
Current investments
Inventories 14 13,951.23 9,036.01
Trade receivables 15 10,085.77 6,624.66
Cash and cash equivalents 16 48.87 6.39

Short-term loans and advances 12 21.69 33.03

Other current assets 12 2572.02 1138.24

26,679.58 16,838.33
TOTAL 57,000.26 35,531.17

Summary of significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For KARP and Co. 
[Formerly known as Alok Palod & Co.] 
Chartered Accountants  
(FRN:  018061C)

For and on behalf of the Board of 
Directors

 
Alok Palod  
PARTNER  
Membership No.: 417729 
UDIN : 25417729BMGYNM2738 
Place: BHILWARA  
Date: 30/05/2025

 
PRAKASH CHANDRA JAIN  

CFO  
PAN: ACZPJ6386K  

 
RAHUL KUMAR VERMA  

CS  
PAN: AQCPV6650M  

 
MOHAMMED SABIR KHAN  

Managing Director  
DIN: 00561917 

 
NASIR KHAN  

Whole Time Director  
DIN: 07775998  
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Standalone Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2025  in lakhs
Particulars Note No. 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Revenue

Revenue from operations 17 41,656.84 31,958.84

Other income 18 179.55 592.27

Total Income 41,836.39 32,551.12

Expenses
Cost of material Consumed 19 21,939.93 19,224.73

Purchase of stock-in-trade 20 8,621.09 5,882.16

Changes in inventories 21 (2,793.04) (2,594.12)Employee benefit expenses 22 1,610.11 1,283.76

Finance costs 23 1,905.78 1,323.64

Depreciation and amortization expenses 24 1,135.92 800.52

Other expenses 25 4,956.68 4,190.98

Total expenses 37,376.46 30,111.68

Profit before exceptional, extraordinary and prior period items and tax 4,459.93 2,439.44

Exceptional items

Profit before extraordinary and prior period items and tax 4,459.93 2,439.44

Extraordinary items

Prior period item

Profit before tax 4,459.93 2,439.44

Tax expenses
Current tax 26 638.08 579.00

Deferred tax 27 490.20 40.83

Excess/short provision relating earlier year tax

Profit(Loss) for the period 3,331.65 1,819.61

Earnings per share-in
Basic 28

Before extraordinary Items 15.13 9.99

After extraordinary Adjustment 15.13 9.99

Diluted

Before extraordinary Items

After extraordinary Adjustment

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For KARP and Co. 
[Formerly known as Alok Palod & Co.] 
Chartered Accountants  
(FRN:  018061C)

For and on behalf of the Board of 
Directors

 
Alok Palod  
PARTNER  
Membership No.: 417729 
UDIN : 25417729BMGYNM2738 
Place: BHILWARA  
Date: 30/05/2025

 
PRAKASH CHANDRA JAIN  

CFO  
PAN: ACZPJ6386K  

 
RAHUL KUMAR VERMA  

CS  
PAN: AQCPV6650M  

 
MOHAMMED SABIR KHAN  

Managing Director  
DIN: 00561917 

 
NASIR KHAN  

Whole Time Director  
DIN: 07775998  
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STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March 2025  in lakhs
PARTICULARS 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax and extraordinary items(as per Statement of Profit and Loss) 4,459.93 2,439.44

Adjustments for non-Cash/ Non trade items:
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 1,135.92 800.52

Finance Cost 1,905.78 1,323.64(Profit) / Loss on Sale Of Assets (7.92)

Interest received (22.90) (21.98)Other Inflows / (Outflows) of cash 26.07 1,684.24

Operating profits before Working Capital Changes 7,496.88 6,225.87

Adjusted For:

(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables (3,461.11) (959.61)

Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables 6,873.82 1,797.33

(Increase) / Decrease in inventories (4,915.23) (2,226.09)

Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 93.51 46.69

(Increase) / Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances (1,422.44) (249.88)

Cash generated from Operations 4,665.43 4,634.30

Income Tax (Paid) / Refund (579.00) (144.72)

Net Cash flow from Operating Activities(A) 4,086.43 4,489.58

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Purchase of tangible assets (14,024.49) (7,226.94)

Proceeds from sales of tangible assets 7.91 310.10

Interest Received 22.90 21.98

Proceeds from sales of intangible assets 37.98

Purchase of intangible assets (109.58)

Cash advances and loans made to other parties (82.32) (211.44)Other Inflow / (Outflows) of cash 1,343.05 (2,730.54)

Net Cash used in Investing Activities(B) (12,732.95) (9,908.43)

C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Finance Cost (1,905.78) (1,323.64)

Increase in / (Repayment) of Short term Borrowings 2,155.85 (21.67)

Increase in / (Repayment) of Long term borrowings 7,123.05 6,187.43

Increase / (Decrease) in share capital 1,754.54 1,101.71

Increase / (Decrease) in money received against share warrants (438.64) 438.64Other Inflows / (Outflows) of cash (1,000.00)

Net Cash used in Financing Activities(C) 8,689.02 5,382.46

D. Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents(A+B+C) 42.50 (36.39)

E. Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of period 6.37 42.76

F. Cash & Cash Equivalents at End of period 48.87 6.37

G. Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents(F-E) 42.50 (36.39)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For KARP and Co. 
[Formerly known as Alok Palod & Co.] 
Chartered Accountants  
(FRN:  018061C)

For and on behalf of the Board of 
Directors

 
Alok Palod  
PARTNER  
Membership No.: 417729 
UDIN : 25417729BMGYNM2738 
Place: BHILWARA  
Date: 30/05/2025

 
PRAKASH CHANDRA JAIN  

CFO  
PAN: ACZPJ6386K  

 
RAHUL KUMAR VERMA  

CS  
PAN: AQCPV6650M  

 
MOHAMMED SABIR KHAN  

Managing Director  
DIN: 00561917 

 
NASIR KHAN  

Whole Time Director  
DIN: 07775998  
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SWARAJ SUITING LIMITED

NOTE 1:SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. ACCOUNTING CONVENTIONS The financial statements are prepared on historical cost convention and on the accounting principles of going concern, in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (‘GAAP’), comprising of the mandatory Accounting Standards, Guidance Notes, etc. issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, on accrual basis, as adopted consistently 
by the company.

2. USE OF ESTIMATE In preparation of the financial statement in confirmatory with Generally Accepted Accounting Principle in India, management is required 
to make estimate & assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets & liability and the disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the financial reporting date. The amount of revenue & expenditure during the reported period and that of actual result could be different 
from those estimates. Any revision to such estimate is recognized in the period in which the same is determined.

3. REVENUE RECOGNITION 

(A) Sales revenue is recognized when property in the goods with all significant risk and rewards as well as the effective control of 
goods usually associated with ownership are transferred to the buyer. 

(B)    Promotional benefits, export incentives and export growth incentives are accounted for on accrual basis when virtual certainty and 
their probable use within reasonable time in the normal course of business, is established. 

(C) Claims and refunds due from government authorities and parties, though receivable refundable are not recognized in the accounts, 
if the amount thereof is not ascertainable. These are accounted for as and when ascertained or admitted by the concerned 
authorities / parties in favor of the company. 

4.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(A) Property, Plant And Equipment are stated at their original cost of acquisition including freight, incidental expenses and other 
nonrefundable taxes or levies related to acquisition and installation of the concerned assets, interest on borrowed funds attributable to acquisition/construction of fixed assets and related pre-operative expenses up to the date of commencement of commercial 
production are also capitalized wherever appropriate. GST Input Claim has been deducted from the cost of respective assets. Any 
subsidy receivables from government are deducted from cost of capital asset at the time of capitalization of the asset.

(B)   Expenditure incurred on acquisition of intangibles is accounted for as intangible assets on completion, being identifiable non-
monetary assets without physical substance, at the acquisition cost, in accordance with AS-26 on intangible assets.

5. DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION

(A) Depreciation has been provided on the Straight-line-method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the management.
Depreciation for assets purchased/ Sold during a period is proportionately charged. In most of the casesUseful lives of assets are taken as prescribed by the schedule II of the companies act except where certificate of any technical expert regarding higher 
useful life is taken by the management. In current year Life of newly installed Machines are taken as 12.5 Years based on technical evaluation and certificate of technical expert. 

(B) Depreciation on plant & Machinery is charged considering the same ‘Continuous Process Plant’ based on technical expert’s advice. 
(C) Residual value of the assets is determined at the rate of 5% of original cost. 

6. PRE-OPERATIVE EXPENSES 

 Trial run costs and other pre-operative expenses incurred during construction / implementation period, including interest on borrowings (Net of subsidy) to finance qualifying assets as per AS-16, are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of the respective asset.
7. TAXATION 

(A).  Current Tax: Provision for taxation is ascertained after considering Section 115BAA , The section 115BAA was introduced by the 
Government of India through the Taxation (Amendment) Ordinance 2019 on the 20th of September 2019

(B).  Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognized, as the tax effect of timing difference between the taxable income and accounting income 
computed for the current accounting years’ timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence. Deferred tax assets are 
recognized and carried forward to the extent that there is a reasonable  certainty, except arising from unabsorbed depreciation 
and carry forward losses which are recognized to the extent that there is deferred tax liabilities or there is virtual certainty, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

8.    INVESTMENT

  Investments are stated at cost.
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9. VALUATION OF INVENTORY 

(A) Inventories are valued at cost and net realizable value whichever is lower. 

(B) Cost is determined on FIFO/Weighted average method. 

(C) The cost of inventories comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion, and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 
their present location and condition.

(D) Merchandise received under consignment and concessionaire arrangements belong to the consignors/concessionaires and are 
therefore excluded from the Company’s inventories

(E) All other inventories of stores, consumables are valued at cost

10. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITY & CONTINGENT ASSETS

(A) Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement, are recognized when the present obligation of or past events gives rise to a probable outflow embodying economic benefits on settlement and the amount of obligation can be reliably 
estimated. 

(B) Contingent liabilities are disclosed after a careful evaluation of facts and legal aspects of the matter involved. 

(C) Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in financial statements. 
(D)   Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

DETAILS OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A) Classification of Contingent liabilities:

- Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts Nil

- Guarantees given by company Nil

- Other money for which the company is contingently liable. Nil

B)  Classification of Commitments into:

- Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Nil

- Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid Nil

- Other commitments(specifying nature)

Export obligation of $ 
397.02 Lacspending on 
account of import duty 

saved under EPCG scheme.

 Detail of Export Obligationunder EPCG

S.NO LICENCE NO. DATE
Duty Save Amount     

(As Per License)
Duty Saved 

Amount Actual
E.O In $ As 

Per License
Expiry Date 

1 1331000267 31-03-2021 1242.28 1242.28 $83.04 31-03-2027

2 1331000993 10-02-2022 84.77411 84.77411 $5.15 10-02-2028

3 1331001849 31-03-2023 12.13717 12.13717 $74.38 31-03-2029

4 1331002350 14-12-2023 233.472 233.472 $12.75 14-12-2029

5 1331002491 11-01-2023 571.3773 571.3773 $41.45 11-01-2030

6 1331002468 11-01-2023 820.7335 820.7335 $44.66 11-01-2030

7 1331002396 13-12-2023 37.24 37.24 $2.71 13-12-2029

8 1331003406 16-10-2024 1106.553 1106.553 $79.90 16-10-2030

9 1331003354 27-09-2024 588.7175 588.7175 $42.61 27-09-2030

10 1331003726 07-03-2025 148.8029 148.8029 $10.38 07-03-2031

TOTAL   4846.087 4846.087 $397.02 

11.  PRELIMINARY EXPENSES

 Preliminary Expenses are written off over a period of 5 years in equal proportion from the date of commencement of commercial activity. 

12. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

  No significant events which could affect the financial position as on 31.03.2025 to a material extent have been reported by the Assesse, 
after the balance sheet date till the signing of report.

13. PRIOR PERIOD AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

 There are no material changes or credits which arise in the current period on accounts of errors and omission in the preparation of the financial statements for the one or more period.
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14.    BORROWING COST

 Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of such 
assets. All other cost is recognized as expenses in the year in which they are incurred.

15.  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 

A) Defined Contribution Plan: The Company makes defined contribution to provided fund which are accounted on accrual basis.
B) Defined Benefit Plan: The company’s Liability on account of Gratuity of employee is determine at the end of each financial year on the basis of actuarial valuation certificate obtained from Registered Actuary in accordance with the measurement procedure as per revised accounting standard (AS) - 15 “Employee Benefit”. The liability is funded on year to year basis by contribution to respective fund. The cost of providing benefit under this plan also determine on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year end. 

16.  CASH FLOW STATEMENT Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash 
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

17.  IMPAIRMENT OF FIXED ASSETS

 Impairment of assets is being measured on factors giving rise to any indication of impairment, by comparing the recoverable amount, 
higher of value in use and net selling price of an asset, with carrying amount of an asset as per the Accounting Standard 28 “Impairment 
of Assets” issued by ICAI.

18.  FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTION /TRANSLATION 

A) Foreign currency transactions arising during the year are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of transactions. 

B) Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
C) All foreign exchange assets/Liabilities on the closing day are converted at closing exchange rate. 

D) Exchange loss on outstanding derivatives transaction are computed on mark to market basis on the closing date and accounted for 
as expenses of period. However gain is not recognized as income of the period, following conservative approach.

19.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank, Cash in hand, Cheque in hand and other 
permissible instruments as per AS 3.

20.   SEGMENT REPORTING

 The dominant source of income of the company is from the manufacturing of fabric of various qualities which do not materially differ 
in respect of risk perception and the return realized/to be realized. Even the geographical environment in which the company operates 
does not materially differ considering the political and economic environment, the type of customers, assets employed and the risk and 
return associated in respect of each of the geographical area. So, the disclosure requirements pursuant to AS17 -Segment Reporting 
issued by the ICAI are not applicable to the company

21.  DISCLOSURES REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006 The figures have been disclosed on the basis of information received from suppliers who have registered themselves under the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) and/or based on the information available with the Company.
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Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025
The previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary to confirm to the current year presentation.

Note No. 2 Share Capital  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Authorised :

42020000 (31/03/2024:22020000) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value 4,202.00 2,202.00

0   (31/03/2024:20000000) Preference shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value 0.00 2,000.00

Issued :

22018260 (31/03/2024:18217260) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value 2,201.83 1,821.73

Subscribed and paid-up :
22018260 (31/03/2024:18217260) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value 2,201.83 1,821.73

Total 2,201.83 1,821.73

Reconciliation of the Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares  in lakhs
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

At the beginning of the period 1,82,17,260 1,821.73 72,00,130 720.01

Issued during the Period

  Bonus issue 72,00,130 720.01

  Preferential Allotment 38,17,000 381.70

  Warrants converted into shares 38,01,000 380.10

Redeemed or bought back during the period

Outstanding at end of the period 2,20,18,260 2,201.83 1,82,17,260 1,821.73

Preference shares  in lakhs
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

At the beginning of the period
Issued during the Period

  Private Placement 1,00,00,000 1,000.00

Redeemed or bought back during the period

  Redemption (1,00,00,000) (1,000.00)

Outstanding at end of the period
Right, Preferences and Restriction attached to shares
Equity shares
The company has only one class of Equity having a par value Rs. 10.00 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. 
The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in 
case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the Equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after 
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Type of Share Name of Shareholders As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
Equity Sakina Textile private limited 30,75,920 13.97 20,60,920 11.31

Equity Mohammed Sabir Khan 41,90,840 19.03 36,25,840 19.90

Equity Divine Suiting Private Limited 50,02,400 22.72 37,82,400 20.76

Equity Gomoto Textile Private Limited 18,07,400 8.21 18,07,400 9.92

Equity Jamuna Synthetics Private Limited 17,18,700 7.81 17,18,700 9.43

Total : 1,57,95,260 71.74 1,29,95,260 71.32
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Details of shares held by Promoters
Current Year Previous Year

Shares at 
beginning

Shares at end
% 

Change
Shares at 
beginning

Shares at end
% 

Change

Promoter name Particulars Number % Number % Number % Number %

MOHAMMAD 
SABIR

Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

3625840 19.90 41,90,840 19.03 -0.87 1312920 18.23 3625840 19.90 1.67

SAMAR KHAN
Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

368400 2.02 368400 1.67 -0.35 184200 2.56 368400 2.02 -0.54

NASIR KHAN
Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

0 0.0 300000 1.36 1.36 0 0.00 0 0.00 -

SAKINA TEXTILE 
PRIVATE 
LIMITED

Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

2060920 11.31 3075920 13.97 2.66 755460 10.49 2060920 11.31 0.82

DIVINE 
SUITINGS 
PRIVATE 
LIMITED

Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

3782400 20.76 5002400 22.72 1.96 1241200 17.24 3782400 20.76 3.52

ZAHIDA 
PARIHAR

Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

14200 0.08 14200 0.06 -0.02 7100 0.10 14200 0.08 -0.02

SHABNAM 
KHAN

Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

14200 0.08 14200 0.06 -0.02 7100 0.10 14200 0.08 -0.02

SHABANA 
AKHLAQUE 
MADNI

Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

14200 0.08 14200 0.06 -0.02 7100 0.10 14200 0.08 -0.02

GOMOTO 
TEXTILE 
PRIVATE 
LIMITED

Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

1807400 9.92 1807400 8.21 -1.71 903700 12.55 1807400 9.92 -2.63

JAMUNA 
SYNTHETICS 
PRIVATE 
LIMITED

Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

1718700 9.43 1718700 7.81 -1.62 859350 11.94 1718700 9.43 -2.51

Total 13406260 73.59 16506260 74.97 5278130 73.31 13406260 73.59

Note No. 3 Reserves and surplus  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

  Surplus
  Opening Balance 2,976.80 2,157.19  Add: Profit for the year 3,331.65 1,819.61

Less: Redemption of Preference Shares (1,000.00)

  Closing Balance 6,308.45 2,976.80

  Securities premium
  Opening Balance 4,052.16 3,391.95

  Add: Addition during the year 1,374.44 1,380.23

  Less : Deletion during the year 720.01

  Closing Balance 5,426.60 4,052.17

  Capital subsidy
  Opening Balance 318.34 318.34

  Add: Addition during the year

  Less : Deletion during the year 

  Closing Balance 318.34 318.34

  Capital redemption reserve
  Opening Balance 1,000.00

  Add: Addition during the year 1,000.00

  Less : Deletion during the year 

  Closing Balance 1,000.00

  Balance carried to balance sheet 13,053.40 8,347.30



                                                                                                                                                        
  ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

                                                                                                         39

Note No. 4 Long-term borrowings  in lakhs

Particulars
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Non-Current
Current 

Maturities
Total Non-Current

Current 
Maturities

Total

Term Loan - From banks
 Term loan from bank and financial institutions 18,500.00 1,636.53 20,136.54 11,391.87 1,322.75 12,714.62

18,500.00 1,636.53 20,136.54 11,391.87 1,322.75 12,714.62
Loans and advances from 
related parties
 Loans directors Unsecured 14.79 14.79 69.28 69.28

14.79 14.79 69.28 69.28

Other Loans and advances

 Loan from corporates 360.65 360.65 291.25 291.25

360.65 360.65 291.25 291.25

The Above Amount Includes

 Secured Borrowings 18,500.00 1,636.53 20,136.54 11,391.87 1,322.75 12,714.62

 Unsecured Borrowings 375.44 375.44 360.53 360.53

 Amount Disclosed Under 
the Head “Short Term 
Borrowings”(Note No. 6)

(1,636.53) (1,636.53) (1,322.75) (1,322.75)

Net Amount 18,875.45 0 18,875.45 11,752.40 0 11,752.40

Note No. 4(a)Long-term borrowings:Term loan from bank and financial institutions  in lakhs

As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Particulars Non-Current
Current 

Maturities
Total Non-Current

Current 
Maturities

Total

BANK OF BARODA 
92300600000021  BGECL 
(EXTENSION)

30.33 52.00 82.33 82.33 52.00 134.33

TL SBI GECL 873280 34.98 60.00 94.98 99.98 60.00 159.98

BANK OF BARODA TL 
92300600000045 Bhilwara

860.00 146.17 1,006.17 1,104.00 236.00 1,340.00

BANK OF BARODA 
92300600000104

2,897.69 102.31 3,000.00 2,974.42 25.58 3,000.00

UNION BANK OF INDIA 
180216390000004

4,019.09 141.91 4,161.00 594.52 35.48 630.00

INDIAN OVERSEAS BANK 
015803303000004

3,803.12 136.42 3,939.53 1,940.05 34.10 1,974.15

CANARA BANK 170010115870 3,380.64 119.36 3,500.00 2,097.16 29.84 2,127.00

TL SIDBI D00090OV (SOLAR) 177.57 63.60 241.17 162.90 37.10 200.00

BOB CAR LOAN 25790600006959 109.58 34.42 144.01 130.50 34.42 164.93

HDFC Fortuner 29.34 10.02 39.36

Term Loan BOB 1,663.47 76.73 1,740.20

STATE BANK OF INDIA TL 
00000040724145708 Bhilwara

600.38 184.00 784.38 790.00 174.00 964.00

UNION BANK OF INDIA TL 
373606390005027 Bhilwara

752.00 232.00 984.00 984.00 224.00 1,208.00

BANK OF BARODA T/L 
25790600004427 Bhilwara

124.79 260.00 384.79 384.31 260.00 644.31

BANK OF BARODA 
92300600000004 (SOLAR) 

15.40 15.20 30.60 44.17 15.20 59.37

Vehicle loan 1.63 2.38 4.01 3.52 2.38 5.91

TL SBI GECL 873280 41.82 41.82

TL SBI GECL 873280 60.82 60.82

Total 18,500.00 1,636.53 20,136.54 11,391.87 1,322.75 12,714.62
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1) BANK OF BARODA T/L 25790600004427 Bhilwara[Repayable in 30 quarterly installments commencing in Feb 19 and ending in May 19 with first ten installments of Rs.50 Lacs each, next 
eight installments of Rs.60.00 Lacs each & last twelve installments of Rs.65.00 Lacs each]

A)  Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank Of Baroda and Union Bank by way of equitable mortgage of Factory land and Building.B)  Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank Of Baroda and Union Bank by way of hypothecation of entire fixed assets of the 
company

C)  Personal Guarantee of Directors and corporate guarantee of M/S Gomoto textile Private Limited, M/S Sakina Textile Private Limited, 
Divine Suitings Private Limited and Modway Suitings Private limited.

2) BANK OF BARODA 92300600000004 (SOLAR)

[Repayable in 28 quarterly installments commencing in March 2021 and ending in December 2027 with 27 installments of Rs.3.80 Lacs 
each & last installment of Rs.2.40 Lacs]

A)  Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank Of Baroda and Union Bank by way of equitable mortgage of Factory land and Building.B)  Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank Of Baroda and Union Bank by way of hypothecation of entire fixed assets of the 
company

C)  Personal Guarantee of Directors and corporate guarantee of M/S Gomoto textile Private Limited, M/S Sakina Textile Private Limited, 
Divine Suitings Private Limited and Modway Suitings Private limited 

3) BANK OF BARODA COVID 19 25790600005079

(1 Year Moratorium, 35 monthly installments of 772000/- and last installment of 780000) (Secured by guarantee of Government of India)

4) STATE BANK OF INDIA COVID TL 39646873280

(1 Year Moratorium, 35 monthly installments of 1014000/- and last installment of 1010000, repayment beginning in September 2021) 
(Secured by guarantee of Government of India)

5) BANK OF BARODA 92300600000021 BGECL (EXTENSION)  

(2 Years Moratorium, 36 Monthly installments of Rs 433333.33 after moratorium period is over) 

6) STATE BANK OF INDIA 40602780294 Bhilwara

(24 Months Moratorium, 36 equal monthly installments of 500000/- beginning from 29 November, 2021)

7) BANK OF BARODA TL 92300600000045 Bhilwara

(12 Months Moratorium, 26 quarterly installments beginning from 31.12.2022- Two quarterly installments of Rs 0.46 crs , next four 
quarterly installments of Rs 0.56 crs, next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.60 crs, next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.61 crs, next 
four quarterly installments of Rs 0.65 crs , next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.66 crs, next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.69 crs) 
Securities Offered

A)  Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank Of Baroda and Union Bank by way of equitable mortgage of Factory land and Building.B) Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank Of Baroda and Union Bank by way of hypothecation of entire fixed assets of the 
company

C)  Personal Guarantee of Directors and corporate guarantee of M/S Gomoto textile Private Limited, M/S Sakina Textile Private Limited, 
Divine Suitings Private Limited and Modway Suitings Private limited 

8) STATE BANK OF INDIA TL 00000040724145708 Bhilwara

(15 Months Moratorium, 26 quarterly installments beginning from 31.12.2022- Two quarterly installments of Rs 0.34 crs , next four 
quarterly installments of Rs 0.42 crs, next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.44 crs, next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.46 crs, next 
four quarterly installments of Rs 0.49 crs , next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.50 crs, next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.52 crs) 
Securities Offered

A)  Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank of Baroda and Union Bank by way of equitable mortgage of Factory land and Building.B)  Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank of Baroda and Union Bank by way of hypothecation of entire fixed assets of the 
company

Note No. 4(b)Long-term borrowings:Loans directors Unsecured  in lakhs

As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Particulars Non-Current
Current 

Maturities
Total Non-Current

Current 
Maturities

Total

From directors,shareholders and relatives 14.79 14.79 69.28 69.28

Total 14.79 14.79 69.28 69.28
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C)  Personal Guarantee of Directors and corporate guarantee of M/S Gomoto textile Private Limited, M/S Sakina Textile Private Limited, 
Divine Suitings Private Limited and Modway Suitings Private limited 

9) UNION BANK OF INDIA TL 373606390005027 Bhilwara

(12 Months Moratorium, 26 quarterly installments beginning from 31.12.2022- Two quarterly installments of Rs 0.42 crs , next four 
quarterly installments of Rs 0.52 crs, next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.56 crs, next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.58crs, next 
four quarterly installments of Rs 0.61 crs , next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.63 crs, next three quarterly installments of Rs 0.65 crs 
and last instalment of rs. 0.61 Crs.) Securities Offered

A)  Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank Of Baroda and Union Bank by way of equitable mortgage of Factory land and Building.B)  Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank Of Baroda and Union Bank by way of hypothecation of entire fixed assets of the 
company

C)  Personal Guarantee of Directors and corporate guarantee of M/S Gomoto textile Private Limited, M/S Sakina Textile Private Limited, 
Divine Suitings Private Limited and Modway Suitings Private limited 

10) BANK OF BARODA 92300600000104

(0.5 Year Moratorium,1.5 Disbursement period , 32 quarterly installments. First quarterly installments of Rs 0.26 crs. [Q-4 2024-25] , next 
four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.26crs[2025-26], next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.41crs[2026-27],next four equal 
quarterly installments of Rs 0.61crs [2027-28],next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.72 crs[2028-29] , next four equal quarterly 
installments of Rs 1.23 crs[2029-30],next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 1.38 crs[2030-31],next four equal quarterly installments 
of Rs 1.53 crs[2031-32] and last three equal quarterly installments of Rs 1.73 crs[2032-33] [Beginning with 30.03.2025]

11) UNION BANK OF INDIA 180216390000004

(0.5 Year Moratorium, 1.5 Disbursement period , 32 quarterly installments. First quarterly installments of Rs 0.35 crs. [Q-4 2024-25] , next 
four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.35crs[2025-26], next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.57crs[2026-27],next four equal 
quarterly installments of Rs 0.85crs [2027-28],next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.99 crs[2028-29] , next four equal quarterly 
installments of Rs 1.70 crs[2029-30],next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 1.92 crs)[2030-31],next four equal quarterly installments 
of Rs 2.13 crs)[2031-32] and last three equal quarterly installments of Rs 2.40 crs)[2032-33] [Beginning with 30.03.2025]

12) INDIAN OVERSEAS BANK 015803303000004

0.5 Year Moratorium,1.5 Disbursement period , 32 quarterly installments. First quarterly installments of Rs 0.34 crs. [Q-4 2024-25] , next 
four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.34crs[2025-26], next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.55crs[2026-27],next four equal 
quarterly installments of Rs 0.82crs [2027-28],next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.95 crs[2028-29] , next four equal quarterly 
installments of Rs 1.64 crs[2029-30],next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 1.84 crs)[2030-31],next four equal quarterly installments 
of Rs 2.05 crs[2031-32] and last three equal quarterly installments of Rs 2.31 crs[2032-33] [Beginning with 30.03.2025

13) CANARA BANK 170010115870

0.5 Year Moratorium,1.5 Disbursement period , 32 quarterly installments. First quarterly installments of Rs 0.30 crs. [Q-4 2024-25] , next 
four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.30crs[2025-26], next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.48crs[2026-27],next four equal 
quarterly installments of Rs 0.72crs [2027-28],next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.84 crs[2028-29] , next four equal quarterly 
installments of Rs 1.43 crs[2029-30],next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 1.61 crs[2030-31],next four equal quarterly installments 
of Rs 1.79 crs[2031-32] and last three equal quarterly installments of Rs 2.02 crs[2032-33] [Beginning with 30.03.2025] 

14) TL SIDBI D00090OV (SOLAR)

( 6 month moratorium , 53  monthly installments of Rs. 530000/- and last installment of Rs. 536000)

15)  VEHICLE LOAN

(Secured against hypothecation of vehicle)

Note No. 5 Deferred Tax  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Deferred tax liability
Deferred tax liability other 623.29 133.10

Gross deferred tax liability 623.29 133.10

Net deferred tax liability 623.29 133.10
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Note No. 6 Provisions  in lakhs

Particulars
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Long-term Short-term Total Long-term Short-term Total

Provision for employee benefit
Provsion other employee related liabilities 149.02 149.02 122.95 122.95

149.02 149.02 122.95 122.95

Other provisions
Provision for income tax 638.08 638.08 579.00 579.00

Provision for audit fees 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00

Provision for Internal audit fees 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25

641.33 641.33 582.25 582.25

Total 149.02 641.33 790.36 122.95 582.25 705.21

Note No. 7 Short-term borrowings  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Loans Repayable on Demands - From banks
   Working capital loans banks secured 6,272.35 4,430.28

6,272.35 4,430.28

Current maturities of long-term debt 1,636.53 1,322.75

1,636.53 1,322.75

Total 7,908.88 5,753.03

Note No. 8 Trade payables  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at31st March 2024

(B) Others

Sundry creditors 13,154.64 6,280.82

13,154.64 6,280.82

Total 13,154.64 6,280.82

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule  in lakhs
Payment date not defined (Outstanding for following periods from due date of Transaction)

Current Year Previous Year

Particular
Less than 

1 Yrs
1-2 Years 2-3 Years

More 
than 3 

Yrs
Total

Less than 
1 Yrs

1-2 Years 2-3 Years
More 

than 3 
Yrs

Total

MSME 0.00 0.00

Others 13124.00 4.88 25.76 13154.64 6256.84 11.35 2.95 9.69 6280.82
Disputed Dues-
MSME

0.00 0.00

Disputed- Others 0.00 0.00

Note No. 9 Other current liabilities  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Interest accrued and due on borrowings

Interest Accrued& due on term loan 71.56 10.36

71.56 10.36

Others payables
Salary and wages payable 139.59 118.89

Tds/Tcs payable 34.52 36.50

Power bill payable 88.88 58.57

ESI & PF Payable 9.32 2.34

Bonus payable 38.37 30.92

Expenses payable 11.95

BOB Credit Card

ESI & PF Payable 9.96

Commission Payable 10.22 19.45

320.90 288.58

Total 392.46 298.95
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Note No. 10 Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets as at 31st March 2025        in lakhs
Assets Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation/ Amortisation Net Block

Useful 
Life 
(In 

Years)

Balance 
as at   

1st April 
2024

Additions 
during the 

year

Addition 
on account 
of business 
acquisition

Deletion 
during 

the year

Balance 
as at   

31st March 
2025

Balance 
as at   

1st April 
2024

Provided 
during 

the year

Deletion / 
adjustments 

during the 
year

Balance 
as at   
31st 

March 
2025

Balance 
as at   
31st 

March 
2025

Balance 
as at   
31st 

March 
2024

A
Tangible 
assets

Own Assets

Land 790.68 790.68 790.68 790.68

Factory 
Building

1,685.35 4,644.61 6,329.97 257.93 89.59 347.52 5,982.45 1,427.43Office 
Equipment

44.32 0.61 44.93 27.07 4.30 31.37 13.56 17.25

Vehicles 495.67 45.95 62.41 479.21 236.85 41.52 51.32 227.05 252.16 258.83

Plant and 
Machinery

8,918.01 14,841.07 23,759.08 4,521.69 884.93 5,406.62 18,352.46 4,396.32

MISC Fixed 
Assets

54.98 54.98 2.39 2.39 52.60

Electric 
Installation

1,009.25 99.60 1,108.84 374.78 91.11 465.88 642.96 634.47

Furniture 25.05 3.33 28.38 4.89 2.55 7.44 20.94 20.16

Computer 49.85 3.43 53.28 25.26 17.50 42.76 10.51 24.59

Total (A) 13,018.19 19,693.58 62.41 32,649.36 5,448.47 1,133.89 51.32 6,531.03 26,118.33 7,569.72

P.Y Total 12,717.24 310.52 9.57 13,018.19 4,664.34 793.22 9.09 5,448.47 7,569.72 8,052.91

B
Intangible 
assets

Software 5.00 109.58 18.85 90.72 7.30 2.04 9.34 81.39 102.28

Total (B) 109.58 18.85 90.72 7.30 2.04 9.34 81.39 102.28

P.Y Total 109.58 109.58 7.30 7.30 102.28

C
Capital work 
in progress
Building 1,356.36 1,356.36 1,356.36

Plant and 
Machinery

5,560.05 4,282.77 1,277.29 1,277.29 5,560.05

Total (C) 6,916.42 5,639.13 1,277.29 1,277.29 6,916.42

P.Y Total 309.62 6,916.42 309.62 6,916.42 6,916.42 309.62

D
Intangible 
assets under 
Development
P.Y Total 37.98 37.98 37.98

Current Year 
Total (A + B 
+ C)

20,044.19 19,693.58 5,720.40 34,017.37 5,455.76 1,135.92 51.32 6,540.36 27,477.00 14,588.42

Previous 
Year Total

13,064.85 7,336.52 357.18 20,044.19 4,664.34 800.52 9.09 5,455.76 14,588.42 8,400.51

CWIP aging schedule

Current Year Previous Year

Assets Name Group CWIP
Less than 

1 Yrs.
1-2 

Years
2-3 

Years

More 
than 3 

Yrs.
Total

Less than 
1 Yrs

1-2 
Years

2-3 
Years

More 
than 3 

Yrs
Total

Building Buildings
Projects in 
progress

1356.36 1356.36

Plant and 
Machniery

Plant and 
Machinery

Projects in 
progress

1,277.29 5560.05 5560.05

Total 1,277.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6916.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 6916.41
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Note No. 11 Non-current investments  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Non-Trade Investment(Valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Other non-current investments (Unquoted)

In Others
Other investments long-term unquoted non-trade (Lower of cost and 
Market value)

261.75 261.75

Gross Investment 261.75 261.75

Net Investment 261.75 261.75

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 261.75 261.75

Note No. 12 Loans and advances  in lakhs

Particulars
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term

Other loans and advances

Tds receivable 27.23 40.70

Tuff receivable 54.74 54.74

Prepaid expenses (Unsecured) 124.16 20.54

Fixed deposit with bank 345.77 263.45

Rips subsidy receivable 32.86 32.86

Duties and taxes for gst 1,881.34 616.94

Tcs 3.56 1.95

Interest accrued on AVVNL deposit 4.12 3.62

Loan to employees 21.69 33.03

License Receivable 0.12 0.12

Capital Subsidy Receivable 310.45

IGST Refund Receivable 48.79

RODTEP/DDBK Drawback 7.51

MP Interest Subsidy Receivable 443.89

345.77 2,593.71 263.45 1,171.25

Total 345.77 2,593.71 263.45 1,171.25

Note No. 13 Other non-current assets  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Security Deposit 221.27 135.17

Other Assets

Miscellaneous expenditure not written off
Preoperative expenses 524.09

Advance for capital goods 2,014.90 2,919.97

Total 2,014.90 2,919.97

Total 2,236.17 3,579.22

Note No. 13 (a) Other non-current assets: Security Deposit  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Security Deposit 221.27 135.17

Total 221.27 135.17

Note No. 14 Inventories  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

(Valued at cost or NRV unless otherwise stated)

Raw Material 3,617.60 1,435.97

WIP 4,552.28 3,208.55

Finished Goods 5,488.45 4,039.14

Stores and spares 292.90 352.35

Total 13,951.23 9,036.01
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Note No. 15 Trade receivables  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Secured, Considered good

Unsecured, Considered Good 10,085.77 6,624.66

Doubtful

Allowance for doubtful receivables

Total 10,085.77 6,624.66

(Current Year)  in lakhs

Particulars
Payment date not defined(Outstanding for following periods from 

due date of Transaction
Less than 6 

months
6 months - 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 
years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables (considered good) 9,465.29 167.19 429.72 10.33 13.24 10,085.77

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables (considered 
doubtful)

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful

(v) Provision for doubtful receivables

(Previous Year)  in lakhs

Particulars
Payment date not defined(Outstanding for following periods from 

due date of Transaction
Less than 6 

months
6 months - 

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 
years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables (considered good) 150.64 11.99 6.98 6.48 176.09

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables (considered 
doubtful)

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered 
doubtful

(v) Provision for doubtful receivables

Note No. 16 Cash and cash equivalents  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Balance with banks
Other deposits with banks 4.55 3.59

Total 4.55 3.59

Cash in hand

Cash in hand 44.33 2.80

Total 44.33 2.80

Total 48.88 6.39

Note No. 17 Revenue from operations  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Sale of products
Finish Sales 36,032.60 26,986.41

Grey sales 3,745.75 1,553.25

Yarn Sales 170.28 1,097.00

39,948.63 29,636.66

Sale of services 1,708.21 2,322.19

Revenue from operations 41,656.84 31,958.85

Less: Excise duty

Net revenue from operations 41,656.84 31,958.85
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Note No. 18 Other income  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Interest Income

Other interest income 22.90 21.98

22.90 21.98

Net gain/loss on sale of investmentsProfit on sale of fixed assets 7.91 2.02Profit on Currency Fluctuation (32.54) 1.12

(24.63) 3.14

Other non-operating income
Scrap sale 418.21

Insurance claim 12.85

Commission Income 76.84

Other receipts 54.96 46.80

Export Incentives 126.32 12.47

181.28 567.17

Total 179.55 592.29

Note No. 19 Cost of material Consumed  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Inventory at the beginning

Raw Material 1,735.97 2,145.85

1,735.97 2,145.85

Add:Purchase

Raw Material 23,821.55 18,814.85

23,821.55 18,814.85

Less:-Inventory at the end

Raw Material 3,617.60 1,735.97

3,617.60 1,735.97

Total 21,939.92 19,224.73

Details of material consumed  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Raw Material

Consumption of raw material 20,021.64 17,500.30

Consumption of dyes and chemial 1,918.28 1,724.43

21,939.92 19,224.73

Total 21,939.92 19,224.73

Details of inventory  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Raw Material

Consumption of raw material 3,421.28 1,459.10

Consumption of dyes and chemial 196.32 276.87

3,617.60 1,735.97

Total 3,617.60 1,735.97

Details of purchase  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Raw Material

Consumption of raw material 21,983.82 17,034.13

Consumption of dyes and chemial 1,837.73 1,780.72

23,821.55 18,814.85

Total 23,821.55 18,814.85
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Note No. 20 Purchase of stock-in-trade  in lakhs

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Finish Fabrics Purchased 10,216.10 6,999.44

Finish Fabrics Purchased (1,595.01) (1,117.28)

Total 8,621.09 5,882.16

Note No. 21 Changes in inventories  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Inventory at the end of the year
Finished Goods 5,488.45 4,039.14

Work-in-Progress 4,552.28 3,208.55

10,040.73 7,247.69

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods 4,039.14 2,533.81

Work-in-Progress 3,208.55 2,119.77

7,247.69 4,653.57

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Finished Goods (1,449.31) (1,505.33)

Work-in-Progress (1,343.73) (1,088.78)

(2,793.04) (2,594.12)

Note No. 22 Employee benefit expenses  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Salaries and Wages

Salaries paid 444.88 325.77

Wages paid 948.42 779.89

1,393.30 1,105.66

Contribution to provident and other fund
P.f and e.s.i contribution 117.81 109.80

Gratuity 28.34 25.56

146.15 135.36

Staff welfare Expenses
Staff Welfare Expenses 32.30 11.81

Bonus 38.37 30.92

70.67 42.73

Total 1,610.12 1,283.75

Note No. 23 Finance costs  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Interest

Interest on term loan 512.22 485.68

Interest paid to bank on cc limit 525.04 485.89

Interest on car loan 15.88 12.31

Interest on u\loan and others 29.33 26.62

Other interest charges 87.32 20.28

Interest on Bill Discounting 603.48 239.88

Interest on Yarn Purchase 67.56 26.10

1,840.83 1,296.76

Other Borrowing costs

Bank charges 58.15 16.36

Processing and stamping 6.79 10.52

64.94 26.88

Total 1,905.77 1,323.64
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Note No. 24 Depreciation and amortization expenses  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Depreciation on tangible assets 1,133.89 793.22

Amortisation of intangible assets 2.04 7.30

Total 1,135.92 800.52

Note No. 25 Other expenses  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Audit fees 4.97 3.80

Administrative expenses 454.66 357.14

Selling and distribution expenses 210.86 149.76

Manufacturing service costs 4,286.19 3,680.29

Total 4,956.68 4,190.98

Note No. 25(a) Other expenses: Audit fees  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Statutory audit fees 4.35 2.25

Internal audit fees 0.25

Tax audit fees 0.75

Stock audit 0.62 0.55

Total 4.97 3.80

Note No. 25(b) Other expenses: Administrative expenses  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

 Miscellaneous Expenses 5.29 2.53

 Telephone & Mobile Expenses 2.25 1.83

 Vehicle Expenses 10.45 10.97

Building Repair 3.05 3.61

Computer and printer expenses 0.17 1.35

CSR Expenses 25.50 10.50

Director remuneration 234.00 198.00

Director Sitting Fees 2.25 2.55

Donetionexpences 3.50 2.23

Festival celebration expenses 12.96 1.45

Fine Paid 0.89 1.20

Government license fees 12.81 2.73

Gst and other late fees

GST Demand 0.09 2.51

Insurance expenses 36.92 27.88

IPO Expenses 7.57

IT Expenses 10.33 5.38

Keyman Insurance 41.41 34.92

Legal and professional expenses 23.21 18.86

Membership fees 1.78 0.20Office rent 12.28 7.93

Other administrative expenses 2.08 4.50

Postage expenses 3.95 2.24

Printing and stationery 0.62 4.67

Rates & Taxes 0.15 0.29

Software Expenses 1.35 0.24

Water expenses 1.12 1.02ISO / Other Certification Charges 6.25

Total 454.66 357.14
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Note No. 25(c) Other expenses: Selling and distribution expenses  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Advertising expenses 8.09 18.14

Freight Expenses 92.17 12.01

Grading and packing expenses 12.07 25.98

Hotel Expense 3.85

Job and agency commission 15.48 27.34

Tour and travelling expenses 64.09 62.43

Godown Rent 18.96

Total 210.86 149.76

Note No. 25(d) Other expenses: Manufacturing service costs  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Agro Waste Expenses 239.81 183.98

Electric expenses 2.36 9.56

Job charges 2,258.62 1,875.92

Oil and lubricant 3.43 3.67

Other manufacturing service cost 47.69 2.98

Power and fuel 1,129.87 1,052.47

Repairs and maintenance of other assets 25.19 21.98

Stores and spares 402.69 344.30

Transport expenses 122.81 153.07

Water Expenses 46.52 32.35

Testing Expenses 7.20

Total 4,286.19 3,680.29

Note No. 26 Current tax  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Current tax pertaining to current year 638.08 579.00

Total 638.08 579.00

Note No. 27 Deferred tax  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Deferred tax 490.20 40.83

Total 490.20 40.83

Note No. 28 Earning Per Share  in lakhs

Particulars
Before Extraordinary items After Extraordinary items

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

BasicProfit after tax (A) 3,331.65 1,819.61 3,331.65 1,819.61

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (B) 2,20,18,260 1,82,17,260 2,20,18,260 1,82,17,260

Basic EPS (A / B) 15.13 9.99 15.13 9.99

DilutedProfit after tax (A) 3,331.65 1,819.61 3,331.65 1,819.61

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (B) 2,20,18,260 1,82,17,260 2,20,18,260 1,82,17,260

Diluted EPS (A / B) 15.13 9.99 15.13 9.99

Face value per share 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00

29.  Sales are recorded exclusive of Goods & Service tax if any but after deducting discount, rebate, rate difference and sales return.                                        

30.  Purchase includes purchase of raw material after deducting purchase return, discount, rebate, and incentives.

31. In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans & Advances are approximately of the value stated and realizable in the ordinary 
course of business. The Provision for all known liabilities is adequate.32.   Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors & Loans & Advances balances are subject to confirmation.
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33.  Auditor’s Remuneration (Exclusive of GST)                                      (IN LACS)

Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024

Audit Fees 4.35 3.25

GST 0.78 0.58

Total 5.13 3.5434.  Directors have given personal guarantee to bankers and financial institution for loans and advances given to the company and the 
company is liable for reimbursement to the directors.

35.  Details of Managerial Remuneration:-

Particulars 2024-2025 (in Lacs) 2023-2024 (in Lacs)

Director Remuneration 234.00 198.00

 
36.  Amount related to previous year arises / settled during the year have been debited / credited to respective heads as per consistent policy 

adopted by the company every year.

37.  On this basis on information furnished to us the Company does not have any amount due (inclusive of interest) to a Small Scale Industrial 
Undertaking.

38.  Related Party Transactions (AS-18)

 As per provisions of Accounting Standard 18 issued by the Chartered Accountants’ of India,    the details of related party transactions are 
as under:

1.Key Management Personnel/ Directors MOHAMMED SABIR KHAN

SAMAR KHAN

NASIR KHAN

RAHUL KUMAR VERMA

PRAKASH CHANDRA JAIN

2. Relatives of KMP MOHAMMAD SUHAIL

ALIM KHAN PARIHAR

ZAHIDA PARIHAR

SHABANA AKHLAQUE MADNI

ALIYA KHAN

MOHAMMED YAKUB

SEEMA JAIN

SHABNAM KHAN
3. Associate/ Sister Concern DIVINE SUITING PRIVATE LIMITED

SAKINA TEXTILE PRIVATE LIMITED

MODWAY SUITING PRIVATE LIMITED

GOMOTO TEXTILES PRIVATE LIMITED

SWARAJ SULZ  PRIVATE LIMITED

AHINSA BUSINESS VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

SATYAMAN TEXPARK PRIVATE LIMITED

JAMUNA SYNTHETICS PRIVATE LIMITED

SHIVGANGA SUITING PRIVATE LIMITED

SWADESH SUITING PRIVATE LIMITED

Transaction done with related parties for the year ending 31.03.2025
(Amount in Lacs)

Nature of 
transactions

Key Management Personnel
Relatives of Key Management 
Personnel

Associate Concern/ Sister 
Concern

2025 2024
O/S Balance 
as on 
31.03.25

2025 2024
O/S Balance 
as on 
31.03.25

2025 2024
O/S 
Balance as 
on 31.03.25

Salary 250.28 211.99 - 27.93 27.83 0.00

Interest on 
loans

0.35 5.29 - 0.00 4.45 14.72

Loan Taken 1030.10 373.97 14.79 0.00 132.90 694.50 156.26



                                                                                                                                                        
  ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

                                                                                                         51

Nature of 
transactions

Key Management Personnel
Relatives of Key Management 
Personnel

Associate Concern/ Sister 
Concern

2025 2024
O/S Balance 
as on 
31.03.25

2025 2024
O/S Balance 
as on 
31.03.25

2025 2024
O/S 
Balance as 
on 31.03.25

Loan Repaid 1084.90 689.22 14.79 0.00 111.65 1027.32 156.26

Purchase& Job 
Payable

0.00 77.95 0.00 2154.43 1,559.65

Sales& Job 
Receivable

0.00 0.00 2808.00 2,684.66

39.  Details of Benami Property held: -Noproceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder

40.  Where the Company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current Assets: - The company has borrowing from bank or financial institution on the basis of security of current assets and it is submitted that:-
1. Quarterly returns are submitted on timely basis.

2. Data provided in stock statement are as per best available quantities subject to physical verification. There is no material difference 
between stock statement submitted to bank and books of accounts, although minor difference can arise due to method of valuation, Physical verification, return of goods, shortage, wastage, ABC analysis of stock, Debit and credit notes and reconciliation of debtors 
and creditors. 

41.  Wilful Defaulter: - Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender during the year under 
consideration.

42.  Relationship with Struck off Companies: - Company has not having any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

43.  Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies: - No charge creation or satisfaction yet to be registered with 
Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period for the current year.

44.  Compliance with number of layers of companies: -Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of 
section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

45.     Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements: - No Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent 
Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013

46.    Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium: The Company has used the borrowed funds and share premium rose for the specific purpose only.
47.    Undisclosed income:- There are no transaction which are not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed 

as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant 
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

48.   Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):- Company hascomplied with the provisions of section 135 of the company’s act 2013

49. Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency:- Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year, 
50.  Ratios:-

Ratio Numerator Denominator
C.Y. 

Ratio
P.Y. 

Ratio
% 

Change
Reason for 

variance

(a) Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.21 1.30 -6.92

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio
Long Term Debt + Short 
Term Debt

Shareholder equity 1.28 1.65 2.33

(c) Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio

Earnings Before Interest, 
tax, Depreciation & 
Amortization

Total principal + Interest 
on Borrowings

2.98 1.62 83.95

(d) Return on Equity 
Ratio

Earning After Interest, 
tax, Depreciation & 
Amortization

Average Shareholder’s 
Equity

12.88 17.15 -24.90

(e) Inventory turnover 
ratio

Turnover Average Inventory 3.62 4.03 -10.17

(f)Trade Receivables 
turnover ratio

Net Credit Sales Average Trade Receivable 4.99 5.20 -4.04
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Ratio Numerator Denominator
C.Y. 

Ratio
P.Y. 

Ratio
% 

Change
Reason for 

variance

(g) Trade payables 
turnover ratio

Net Credit Purchase Average Trade Payable 3.34 4.59 -27.23

Due to reduced 
payment cycle of 
creditors during 
the year ratio has 
been improved.

(h) Net capital turnover 
ratio

Total Sales Average Working Capital 9.09 8.15 11.53(i) Net profit ratio Net Profit Net Sales 8.00 5.25 52.38

(j) Return on Capital 
employed

Earnings Before Interest 
& tax

Capital employed 14.87 13.26 15.38

(k) Return on investment NOT APPLICABLE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of M/S SWARAJ SUITING LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

OpinionWe have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements 
of SWARAJ SUITING LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Parent 
Company”) and its associateM/S Modway Suiting Private Limited 
(formerly known as M/s Cyan Textile Private Limited),Parent company 
and its associate together referred as “the Group”) comprising of the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”)
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated 
state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2025, and their consolidated profit/loss and their consolidated cash flows for the 
year ended on that date.

Basis for opinionWe conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ 
report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation 
of the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis; 
Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon.Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information; we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 
Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in terms of the 
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”)that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its Associates and Jointly controlled 
entities in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly 
controlled entities are responsible for maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which 
have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Parent Company, as 
aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal controls.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the Company and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, has adequate internal financial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.
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•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of 
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,2020 
(“CARO 2020”), issued by the Central Governmentof India in 
terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 ofthe Act, we give in the Annexure B, a statement on thematter specified in paragraph 
3(xxi) of CARO 2020.

2.    As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we 
report that:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by 
law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books.

c)  The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash 

Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014.

e)  On the basis of the written representations received from 
the directors of the Company as on March 31, 2025 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and 
its subsidiary incorporated in India and the reports of the 
statutory auditors of its subsidiary company incorporated 
in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 
(2) of the Act.f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls; refer to our separate Report 
in “Annexure A” which is based on the auditor’s reports of 
the Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion 
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial control over financial reporting of those 
companies, for reasons stated therein.

g)  With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s 
Report under section 197(16), In our opinion and 
according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors 
during the current year is in accordance with the provisions 
of section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any 
director is not in excess of the limit laid down under section 
197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not 
prescribed other details under section 197(16) which are 
required to be commented upon by us.

h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended 
in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us :

•	 The consolidated financial statements disclose impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial 
position of the

•	 The Group did not have any material foreseeable 
losses on long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts.

•	 There were no amounts which were required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Parent Company, and its subsidiary 
companies.

•	 The management has represented that, to the best 
of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed 
in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in 
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
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Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

•	 The management has represented, that, to the best of 
it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in 
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received 
by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly 
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

•	 Based on such audit procedures that have been 
considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that 
has caused us to believe that the representations 
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided 
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material miss-
statement.

•	 No dividend have been declared or paid during the 
year by the company.

•	 Based on our examination which included test checks, 
the company has used accounting software for 
maintaining its books of account which has a feature 
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same 
has operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during 
the course of our audit we did not come across any 
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. 
[Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by 
the company as per the statutory requirements for 
record retention.]

For KARP and Co. 
[Formerly known as AlokPalod& Co.] 
Chartered Accountants  
(FRN:  018061C)

Alok Palod 
PARTNER  
Membership No.: 417729 
UDIN : 25417729BMGYNN4930   
Place: BHILWARA  
Date: 30/05/2025
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF SWARAJ SUITING LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements 
of the Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of SWARAJ SUITING LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “Company”) 
and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in 
India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiary company, 
which are company incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the respective Companies considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.
Auditor’s ResponsibilityOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and its subsidiary 
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error.We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company and 
its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial ReportingA company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is 
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
ReportingBecause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the Company and its subsidiary company, 
which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting 
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective 
companies considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

For KARP and Co. 
[Formerly known as AlokPalod& Co.] 
Chartered Accountants  
(FRN:  018061C)

AlokPalod 
PARTNER  
Membership No.: 417729 
UDIN : 25417729BMGYNN4930   
Place: BHILWARA  
Date: 30/05/2025
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF SWARAJ SUITING LIMITEDAs required by paragraph 3(xxi) of the CARO 2020, we report that there are no adverse qualification has been made by any of the auditors of the associate companies in there CARO report on the standalone financial statements of therespective companies included in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements of the Parent Company.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025  in lakhs
Particulars Note No. As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder’s funds
Share capital 2 2,201.83 1,821.73
Reserves and surplus 3 13,159.81 8,437.48

Money received against share warrants 438.64
15,361.64 10,697.85

Share application money pending allotment
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 4 18,875.45 11,752.40

Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 5 623.29 133.10

Other long term liabilities
Long-term provisions 6 149.02 122.95

19,647.76 12,008.45
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 7 7,908.88 5,753.03
Trade payables 8
(A) Micro enterprises and small enterprises
(B) Others 13,154.64 6,280.82
Other current liabilities 9 392.46 298.95
Short-term provisions 641.33 582.25

22,097.31 12,915.05
TOTAL 57,106.67 35,621.35
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets 10
Property, Plant and Equipment 26,131.15 7,569.72
Intangible assets 68.54 102.28
Capital work-in-Progress 1,277.29 6,916.42
Intangible assets under development

Non-current investments 11 368.16 351.93
Deferred tax assets (net)
Long-term loans and advances 12 345.77 263.45
Other non-current assets 13 2,236.17 3,579.22

30,427.09 18,783.02
Current assets

Current investments
Inventories 14 13,951.23 9,036.01
Trade receivables 15 10,085.77 6,624.66
Cash and cash equivalents 16 48.87 6.39
Short-term loans and advances 12 21.69 33.03
Other current assets 12 2572.02 1138.24

26,679.58 16,838.33
TOTAL 57,106.67 35,621.35
Summary of significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For KARP and Co. 
[Formerly known as Alok Palod & Co.] 
Chartered Accountants  
(FRN:  018061C)

For and on behalf of the Board of 
Directors

 
Alok Palod  
PARTNER  
Membership No.: 417729 
UDIN : 25417729BMGYNN4930
Place: BHILWARA  
Date: 30/05/2025

 
PRAKASH CHANDRA JAIN  

CFO  
PAN: ACZPJ6386K  

 
RAHUL KUMAR VERMA  

CS  
PAN: AQCPV6650M  

 
MOHAMMED SABIR KHAN  

Managing Director  
DIN: 00561917 

 
NASIR KHAN  

Whole Time Director  
DIN: 07775998  
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2025  in lakhs
Particulars Note No. 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Revenue

Revenue from operations 17 41,656.84 31,958.84

Other income 18 179.55 592.27

Total Income 41,836.39 32,551.12

Expenses
Cost of material Consumed 19 21,939.93 19,224.73

Purchase of stock-in-trade 20 8,621.09 5,882.16

Changes in inventories 21 (2,793.04) (2,594.12)Employee benefit expenses 22 1,610.11 1,283.76

Finance costs 23 1,905.78 1,323.64

Depreciation and amortization expenses 24 1,135.92 800.52

Other expenses 25 4,956.68 4,190.98

Total expenses 37,376.46 30,111.68
Profit before exceptional, extraordinary and prior period items and 
tax

4,459.93 2,439.44

Exceptional items

Profit before extraordinary and prior period items and tax 4,459.93 2,439.44

Extraordinary items

Prior period item

Profit before tax 4,459.93 2,439.44

Tax expenses
Current tax 26 638.08 579.00

Deferred tax 27 490.20 40.83

Excess/short provision relating earlier year tax

Post-Acquisition Profit (Associate) 16.24 30.17

Profit(Loss) for the period 3,347.89 1,849.79

Earnings per share-in
Basic 28

Before extraordinary Items 15.13 9.99

After extraordinary Adjustment 15.13 9.99

Diluted

Before extraordinary Items

After extraordinary Adjustment

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For KARP and Co. 
[Formerly known as Alok Palod & Co.] 
Chartered Accountants  
(FRN:  018061C)

For and on behalf of the Board of 
Directors

 
Alok Palod  
PARTNER  
Membership No.: 417729 
UDIN : 25417729BMGYNN4930
Place: BHILWARA  
Date: 30/05/2025

 
PRAKASH CHANDRA JAIN  

CFO  
PAN: ACZPJ6386K  

 
RAHUL KUMAR VERMA  

CS  
PAN: AQCPV6650M  

 
MOHAMMED SABIR KHAN  

Managing Director  
DIN: 00561917 

 
NASIR KHAN  

Whole Time Director  
DIN: 07775998  
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March 2025  in lakhs

PARTICULARS 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax and extraordinary items(as per Statement of Profit and 
Loss)

4,459.93 2,439.44

Adjustments for non-Cash/ Non trade items:
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 1,135.92 800.52

Finance Cost 1,905.78 1,323.64(Profit) / Loss on Sale Of Assets (7.92)

Interest received (22.90) (21.98)Other Inflows / (Outflows) of cash 26.07 1,684.24

Operating profits before Working Capital Changes 7,496.88 6,225.87

Adjusted For:

(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables (3,461.11) (959.61)

Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables 6,873.82 1,797.33

(Increase) / Decrease in inventories (4,915.23) (2,226.09)

Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 93.51 46.69

(Increase) / Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances (1,422.44) (249.88)

Cash generated from Operations 4,665.43 4,634.30

Income Tax (Paid) / Refund (579.00) (144.72)

Net Cash flow from Operating Activities(A) 4,086.43 4,489.58

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Purchase of tangible assets (14,024.49) (7,226.94)

Proceeds from sales of tangible assets 7.91 310.10

Interest Received 22.90 21.98

Proceeds from sales of intangible assets 37.98

Purchase of intangible assets (109.58)

Cash advances and loans made to other parties (82.32) (211.44)Other Inflow / (Outflows) of cash 1,343.05 (2,730.54)

Net Cash used in Investing Activities(B) (12,732.95) (9,908.43)

C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Finance Cost (1,905.78) (1,323.64)

Increase in / (Repayment) of Short term Borrowings 2,155.85 (21.67)

Increase in / (Repayment) of Long term borrowings 7,123.05 6,187.43

Increase / (Decrease) in share capital 1,754.54 1,101.71

Increase / (Decrease) in money received against share warrants (438.64) 438.64Other Inflows / (Outflows) of cash (1,000.00)

Net Cash used in Financing Activities(C) 8,689.02 5,382.46

D. Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents(A+B+C) 42.50 (36.39)

E. Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of period 6.37 42.76

F. Cash & Cash Equivalents at End of period 48.87 6.37

G. Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents(F-E) 42.50 (36.39)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For KARP and Co. 
[Formerly known as Alok Palod & Co.] 
Chartered Accountants  
(FRN:  018061C)

For and on behalf of the Board of 
Directors

 
Alok Palod  
PARTNER  
Membership No.: 417729 
UDIN : 25417729BMGYNN4930 
Place: BHILWARA  
Date: 30/05/2025

 
PRAKASH CHANDRA JAIN  

CFO  
PAN: ACZPJ6386K  

 
RAHUL KUMAR VERMA  

CS  
PAN: AQCPV6650M  

 
MOHAMMED SABIR KHAN  

Managing Director  
DIN: 00561917 

 
NASIR KHAN  

Whole Time Director  
DIN: 07775998  
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Notes to Accounts of Consolidated Financial Statements

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT: These condensed consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared to comply with the generally accepted accounting 
principles, including the accounting standards notify under the relevant provision of companies act 2013.

2. PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION: The condensed consolidated interim financial statements relate to SWARAJ SUITING LIMITED and its associate has been prepared on 
following basis:

a)  Investment in associate companies has been accounted under the equity method as per accounting standard – 23, “Accounting for Investment in Associates in consolidated financial statements”.b)  The company accounts for its share of post-acquisition changes in net assets of associates, after eliminating unrealized profit or losses resulting from transaction between the company and its associate to the extent of its share, through its consolidate profit and loss statement, to the extent such change is attributable to the associates profit and loss statement and through its reserves for the 
balance based on available information.

c)  The difference between the cost of investment in the associate and the share of net assets at the time of acquisition of shares in the associates is identified in the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserves as the case may be.d)  As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as the company’s separate financial statements.
3. OTHER SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES These are set out under “Significant Accounting Policies” as given in the company’s separate condensed interim financial statements.

For KARP and Co. 
[Formerly known as AlokPalod& Co.] 
Chartered Accountants  
(FRN:  018061C)

AlokPalod 
PARTNER  
Membership No.: 417729 
UDIN : 25417729BMGYNN4930   
Place: BHILWARA  
Date: 30/05/2025
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Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025
The previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary to confirm to the current year presentation.

Note No. 2 Share Capital  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Authorised :

42020000 (31/03/2024:22020000) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value 4,202.00 2,202.00

0   (31/03/2024:20000000) Preference shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value 0.00 2,000.00

Issued :

22018260 (31/03/2024:18217260) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value 2,201.83 1,821.73

Subscribed and paid-up :
22018260 (31/03/2024:18217260) Equity shares of Rs. 10.00/- par value 2,201.83 1,821.73

Total 2,201.83 1,821.73

Reconciliation of the Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares  in lakhs
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

At the beginning of the period 1,82,17,260 1,821.73 72,00,130 720.01

Issued during the Period

  Bonus issue 72,00,130 720.01

  Preferential Allotment 38,17,000 381.70

  Warrants converted into shares 38,01,000 380.10

Redeemed or bought back during the period

Outstanding at end of the period 2,20,18,260 2,201.83 1,82,17,260 1,821.73

Preference shares  in lakhs
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

At the beginning of the period
Issued during the Period

  Private Placement 1,00,00,000 1,000.00

Redeemed or bought back during the period

  Redemption (1,00,00,000) (1,000.00)

Outstanding at end of the period
Right, Preferences and Restriction attached to shares
Equity shares
The company has only one class of Equity having a par value Rs. 10.00 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. 
The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in 
case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the Equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after 
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Type of Share Name of Shareholders As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
Equity Sakina Textile private limited 30,75,920 13.97 20,60,920 11.31

Equity Mohammed Sabir Khan 41,90,840 19.03 36,25,840 19.90

Equity Divine Suiting Private Limited 50,02,400 22.72 37,82,400 20.76

Equity Gomoto Textile Private Limited 18,07,400 8.21 18,07,400 9.92

Equity Jamuna Synthetics Private Limited 17,18,700 7.81 17,18,700 9.43

Total : 1,57,95,260 71.74 1,29,95,260 71.32
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Details of shares held by Promoters
Current Year Previous Year

Shares at beginning Shares at end
% 

Change
Shares at beginning Shares at end

% 
Change

Promoter name Particulars Number % Number % Number % Number %

MOHAMMAD 
SABIR

Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

3625840 19.90 41,90,840 19.03 -0.87 1312920 18.23 3625840 19.90 1.67

SAMAR KHAN
Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

368400 2.02 368400 1.67 -0.35 184200 2.56 368400 2.02 -0.54

NASIR KHAN
Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

0 0.0 300000 1.36 1.36 0 0.00 0 0.00 -

SAKINA TEXTILE 
PRIVATE LIMITED

Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

2060920 11.31 3075920 13.97 2.66 755460 10.49 2060920 11.31 0.82

DIVINE SUITINGS 
PRIVATE LIMITED

Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

3782400 20.76 5002400 22.72 1.96 1241200 17.24 3782400 20.76 3.52

ZAHIDA PARIHAR
Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

14200 0.08 14200 0.06 -0.02 7100 0.10 14200 0.08 -0.02

SHABNAM KHAN
Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

14200 0.08 14200 0.06 -0.02 7100 0.10 14200 0.08 -0.02

SHABANA 
AKHLAQUE 
MADNI

Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

14200 0.08 14200 0.06 -0.02 7100 0.10 14200 0.08 -0.02

GOMOTO TEXTILE 
PRIVATE LIMITED

Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

1807400 9.92 1807400 8.21 -1.71 903700 12.55 1807400 9.92 -2.63

JAMUNA 
SYNTHETICS 
PRIVATE LIMITED

Equity [NV: 
10.00 ]

1718700 9.43 1718700 7.81 -1.62 859350 11.94 1718700 9.43 -2.51

Total 13406260 73.59 16506260 74.97 5278130 73.31 13406260 73.59

Note No. 3 Reserves and surplus  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

  Surplus
  Opening Balance 3,066.98 2,217.20  Add: Profit for the year 3,347.89 1,849.78

Less: Redemption of Preference Shares (1,000.00)

  Closing Balance 6,414.87 3,066.98

  Securities premium
  Opening Balance 4,052.16 3,391.95

  Add: Addition during the year 1,374.44 1,380.23

  Less : Deletion during the year 720.01

  Closing Balance 5,426.60 4,052.17

  Capital subsidy
  Opening Balance 318.34 318.34

  Add: Addition during the year

  Less : Deletion during the year 

  Closing Balance 318.34 318.34

  Capital redemption reserve
  Opening Balance 1,000.00

  Add: Addition during the year 1,000.00

  Less : Deletion during the year 

  Closing Balance 1,000.00

  Balance carried to balance sheet 13159.81 8,437.48
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Note No. 4 Long-term borrowings  in lakhs

Particulars
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Non-Current
Current 

Maturities
Total Non-Current

Current 
Maturities

Total

Term Loan - From banks Term loan from bank and financial 
institutions

18,500.00 1,636.53 20,136.54 11,391.87 1,322.75 12,714.62

18,500.00 1,636.53 20,136.54 11,391.87 1,322.75 12,714.62
Loans and advances from related 
parties
 Loans directors Unsecured 14.79 14.79 69.28 69.28

14.79 14.79 69.28 69.28

Other Loans and advances

 Loan from corporates 360.65 360.65 291.25 291.25

360.65 360.65 291.25 291.25

The Above Amount Includes

 Secured Borrowings 18,500.00 1,636.53 20,136.54 11,391.87 1,322.75 12,714.62

 Unsecured Borrowings 375.44 375.44 360.53 360.53
 Amount Disclosed Under the Head “Short 
Term Borrowings”(Note No. 6)

(1,636.53) (1,636.53) (1,322.75) (1,322.75)

Net Amount 18,875.45 0 18,875.45 11,752.40 0 11,752.40

Note No. 4(a)Long-term borrowings:Term loan from bank and financial institutions  in lakhs

As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Particulars Non-Current
Current 

Maturities
Total Non-Current

Current 
Maturities

Total

BANK OF BARODA 92300600000021  
BGECL (EXTENSION)

30.33 52.00 82.33 82.33 52.00 134.33

TL SBI GECL 873280 34.98 60.00 94.98 99.98 60.00 159.98

BANK OF BARODA TL 92300600000045 
Bhilwara

860.00 146.17 1,006.17 1,104.00 236.00 1,340.00

BANK OF BARODA 92300600000104 2,897.69 102.31 3,000.00 2,974.42 25.58 3,000.00

UNION BANK OF INDIA 
180216390000004

4,019.09 141.91 4,161.00 594.52 35.48 630.00

INDIAN OVERSEAS BANK 
015803303000004

3,803.12 136.42 3,939.53 1,940.05 34.10 1,974.15

CANARA BANK 170010115870 3,380.64 119.36 3,500.00 2,097.16 29.84 2,127.00

TL SIDBI D00090OV (SOLAR) 177.57 63.60 241.17 162.90 37.10 200.00

BOB CAR LOAN 25790600006959 109.58 34.42 144.01 130.50 34.42 164.93

HDFC Fortuner 29.34 10.02 39.36

Term Loan BOB 1,663.47 76.73 1,740.20

STATE BANK OF INDIA TL 
00000040724145708 Bhilwara

600.38 184.00 784.38 790.00 174.00 964.00

UNION BANK OF INDIA TL 
373606390005027 Bhilwara

752.00 232.00 984.00 984.00 224.00 1,208.00

BANK OF BARODA T/L 25790600004427 
Bhilwara

124.79 260.00 384.79 384.31 260.00 644.31

BANK OF BARODA 92300600000004 
(SOLAR) 

15.40 15.20 30.60 44.17 15.20 59.37

Vehicle loan 1.63 2.38 4.01 3.52 2.38 5.91

TL SBI GECL 873280 41.82 41.82

TL SBI GECL 873280 60.82 60.82

Total 18,500.00 1,636.53 20,136.54 11,391.87 1,322.75 12,714.62
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Note No. 4(b)Long-term borrowings:Loans directors Unsecured  in lakhs
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Particulars Non-Current
Current 

Maturities
Total Non-Current

Current 
Maturities

Total

From directors,shareholders and 
relatives

14.79 14.79 69.28 69.28

Total 14.79 14.79 69.28 69.28

1) BANK OF BARODA T/L 25790600004427 Bhilwara [Repayable in 30 quarterly installments commencing in Feb 19 and ending in May 19 with first ten installments of Rs.50 Lacs each, next 
eight installments of Rs.60.00 Lacs each & last twelve installments of Rs.65.00 Lacs each]

A)  Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank Of Baroda and Union Bank by way of equitable mortgage of Factory land and Building.B) Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank Of Baroda and Union Bank by way of hypothecation of entire fixed assets of the 
company

C)  Personal Guarantee of Directors and corporate guarantee of M/S Gomoto textile Private Limited, M/S Sakina Textile Private Limited, 
Divine Suitings Private Limited and Modway Suitings Private limited.

2) BANK OF BARODA 92300600000004 (SOLAR)

 [Repayable in 28 quarterly installments commencing in March 2021 and ending in December 2027 with 27 installments of Rs.3.80 Lacs 
each & last installment of Rs.2.40 Lacs]

A)  Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank Of Baroda and Union Bank by way of equitable mortgage of Factory land and Building.B)  Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank Of Baroda and Union Bank by way of hypothecation of entire fixed assets of the 
company

C)  Personal Guarantee of Directors and corporate guarantee of M/S Gomoto textile Private Limited, M/S Sakina Textile Private Limited, 
Divine Suitings Private Limited and Modway Suitings Private limited 

3) BANK OF BARODA COVID 19 25790600005079

 (1 Year Moratorium, 35 monthly installments of 772000/- and last installment of 780000) (Secured by guarantee of Government of India)

4) STATE BANK OF INDIA COVID TL 39646873280

 (1 Year Moratorium, 35 monthly installments of 1014000/- and last installment of 1010000, repayment beginning in September 2021) 
(Secured by guarantee of Government of India)

5) BANK OF BARODA 92300600000021 BGECL (EXTENSION)  

 (2 Years Moratorium, 36 Monthly installments of Rs 433333.33 after moratorium period is over) 

6) STATE BANK OF INDIA 40602780294 Bhilwara

 (24 Months Moratorium, 36 equal monthly installments of 500000/- beginning from 29 November, 2021)

7) BANK OF BARODA TL 92300600000045 Bhilwara

 (12 Months Moratorium, 26 quarterly installments beginning from 31.12.2022- Two quarterly installments of Rs 0.46 crs , next four 
quarterly installments of Rs 0.56 crs, next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.60 crs, next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.61 crs, next 
four quarterly installments of Rs 0.65 crs , next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.66 crs, next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.69 crs) 
Securities Offered

A)  Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank Of Baroda and Union Bank by way of equitable mortgage of Factory land and Building.B)  Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank Of Baroda and Union Bank by way of hypothecation of entire fixed assets of the 
company

C)  Personal Guarantee of Directors and corporate guarantee of M/S Gomoto textile Private Limited, M/S Sakina Textile Private Limited, 
Divine Suitings Private Limited and Modway Suitings Private limited 

8) STATE BANK OF INDIA TL 00000040724145708 Bhilwara

 (15 Months Moratorium, 26 quarterly installments beginning from 31.12.2022- Two quarterly installments of Rs 0.34 crs , next four 
quarterly installments of Rs 0.42 crs, next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.44 crs, next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.46 crs, next 
four quarterly installments of Rs 0.49 crs , next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.50 crs, next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.52 crs) 
Securities Offered

A) Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank of Baroda and Union Bank by way of equitable mortgage of Factory land and Building.B) Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank of Baroda and Union Bank by way of hypothecation of entire fixed assets of the 
company

C) Personal Guarantee of Directors and corporate guarantee of M/S Gomoto textile Private Limited, M/S Sakina Textile Private Limited, 
Divine Suitings Private Limited and Modway Suitings Private limited 
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9) UNION BANK OF INDIA TL 373606390005027 Bhilwara

 (12 Months Moratorium, 26 quarterly installments beginning from 31.12.2022- Two quarterly installments of Rs 0.42 crs , next four 
quarterly installments of Rs 0.52 crs, next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.56 crs, next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.58crs, next 
four quarterly installments of Rs 0.61 crs , next four quarterly installments of Rs 0.63 crs, next three quarterly installments of Rs 0.65 crs 
and last instalment of rs. 0.61 Crs.) Securities Offered

A) Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank Of Baroda and Union Bank by way of equitable mortgage of Factory land and 
Building.B) Pari Passu 1st Charge of State bank of India, Bank Of Baroda and Union Bank by way of hypothecation of entire fixed assets of the 
company

C) Personal Guarantee of Directors and corporate guarantee of M/S Gomoto textile Private Limited, M/S Sakina Textile Private Limited, 
Divine Suitings Private Limited and Modway Suitings Private limited 

10) BANK OF BARODA 92300600000104

 (0.5 Year Moratorium,1.5 Disbursement period , 32 quarterly installments. First quarterly installments of Rs 0.26 crs. [Q-4 2024-25] , 
next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.26crs[2025-26], next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.41crs[2026-27],next four 
equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.61crs [2027-28],next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.72 crs[2028-29] , next four equal 
quarterly installments of Rs 1.23 crs[2029-30],next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 1.38 crs[2030-31],next four equal quarterly 
installments of Rs 1.53 crs[2031-32] and last three equal quarterly installments of Rs 1.73 crs[2032-33] [Beginning with 30.03.2025]

11) UNION BANK OF INDIA 180216390000004

 (0.5 Year Moratorium, 1.5 Disbursement period , 32 quarterly installments. First quarterly installments of Rs 0.35 crs. [Q-4 2024-25] , 
next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.35crs[2025-26], next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.57crs[2026-27],next four 
equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.85crs [2027-28],next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.99 crs[2028-29] , next four equal 
quarterly installments of Rs 1.70 crs[2029-30],next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 1.92 crs)[2030-31],next four equal quarterly 
installments of Rs 2.13 crs)[2031-32] and last three equal quarterly installments of Rs 2.40 crs)[2032-33] [Beginning with 30.03.2025]

12) INDIAN OVERSEAS BANK 015803303000004

 0.5 Year Moratorium,1.5 Disbursement period , 32 quarterly installments. First quarterly installments of Rs 0.34 crs. [Q-4 2024-25] , 
next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.34crs[2025-26], next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.55crs[2026-27],next four 
equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.82crs [2027-28],next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.95 crs[2028-29] , next four equal 
quarterly installments of Rs 1.64 crs[2029-30],next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 1.84 crs)[2030-31],next four equal quarterly 
installments of Rs 2.05 crs[2031-32] and last three equal quarterly installments of Rs 2.31 crs[2032-33] [Beginning with 30.03.2025

13) CANARA BANK 170010115870

 0.5 Year Moratorium,1.5 Disbursement period , 32 quarterly installments. First quarterly installments of Rs 0.30 crs. [Q-4 2024-25] , 
next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.30crs[2025-26], next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.48crs[2026-27],next four 
equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.72crs [2027-28],next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 0.84 crs[2028-29] , next four equal 
quarterly installments of Rs 1.43 crs[2029-30],next four equal quarterly installments of Rs 1.61 crs[2030-31],next four equal quarterly 
installments of Rs 1.79 crs[2031-32] and last three equal quarterly installments of Rs 2.02 crs[2032-33] [Beginning with 30.03.2025] 

14) TL SIDBI D00090OV (SOLAR)

 ( 6 month moratorium , 53  monthly installments of Rs. 530000/- and last installment of Rs. 536000)

15)  VEHICLE LOAN

 (Secured against hypothecation of vehicle)

Note No. 5 Deferred Tax  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Deferred tax liability
Deferred tax liability other 623.29 133.10

Gross deferred tax liability 623.29 133.10

Net deferred tax liability 623.29 133.10

Note No. 6 Provisions  in lakhs

Particulars
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Long-term Short-term Total Long-term Short-term Total

Provision for employee benefit
Provsion other employee related 
liabilities

149.02 149.02 122.95 122.95

149.02 149.02 122.95 122.95

Other provisions
Provision for income tax 638.08 638.08 579.00 579.00

Provision for audit fees 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00

Provision for Internal audit fees 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25

641.33 641.33 582.25 582.25

Total 149.02 641.33 790.36 122.95 582.25 705.21
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Note No. 7 Short-term borrowings  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Loans Repayable on Demands - From banks
   Working capital loans banks secured 6,272.35 4,430.28

6,272.35 4,430.28

Current maturities of long-term debt 1,636.53 1,322.75

1,636.53 1,322.75

Total 7,908.88 5,753.03

Note No. 8 Trade payables  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at31st March 2024

(B) Others

Sundry creditors 13,154.64 6,280.82

13,154.64 6,280.82

Total 13,154.64 6,280.82

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule  in lakhs
Payment date not defined (Outstanding for following periods from due date of Transaction)

Current Year Previous Year

Particular
Less than 

1 Yrs
1-2 Years 2-3 Years

More 
than 3 

Yrs
Total

Less than 
1 Yrs

1-2 Years 2-3 Years
More 

than 3 
Yrs

Total

MSME 0.00 0.00

Others 13124.00 4.88 25.76 13154.64 6256.84 11.35 2.95 9.69 6280.82
Disputed 
Dues-MSME

0.00 0.00

Disputed- 
Others

0.00 0.00

Note No. 9 Other current liabilities  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Interest accrued and due on borrowings

Interest Accrued& due on term loan 71.56 10.36

71.56 10.36

Others payables
Salary and wages payable 139.59 118.89

Tds/Tcs payable 34.52 36.50

Power bill payable 88.88 58.57

ESI & PF Payable 9.32 2.34

Bonus payable 38.37 30.92

Expenses payable 11.95

BOB Credit Card

ESI & PF Payable 9.96

Commission Payable 10.22 19.45

320.90 288.58

Total 392.46 298.95
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Note No. 10Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets as at 31st March 2025  in lakhs

Assets Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation/ Amortisation Net Block

Useful 
Life 
(In 

Years)

Balance 
as at   

1st April 
2024

Additions 
during 

the year

Addition 
on account 
of business 
acquisition

Deletion 
during 

the year

Balance 
as at   
31st 

March 
2025

Balance 
as at   

1st April 
2024

Provided 
during 

the year

Deletion / 
adjustments 

during the 
year

Balance 
as at   
31st 

March 
2025

Balance 
as at   
31st 

March 
2025

Balance 
as at   
31st 

March 
2024

A
Tangible 
assets

Own Assets

Land 790.68 790.68 790.68 790.68

Factory 
Building

1,685.35 4,644.61 6,329.97 257.93 89.59 347.52 5,982.45 1,427.43Office 
Equipment

44.32 0.61 44.93 27.07 4.30 31.37 13.56 17.25

Vehicles 495.67 45.95 62.41 479.21 236.85 41.52 51.32 227.05 252.16 258.83

Plant and 
Machinery

8,918.01 14,841.07 23,759.08 4,521.69 884.93 5,406.62 18,352.46 4,396.32

MISC Fixed 
Assets

54.98 54.98 2.39 2.39 52.60

Electric 
Installation

1,009.25 99.60 1,108.84 374.78 91.11 465.88 642.96 634.47

Furniture 25.05 3.33 28.38 4.89 2.55 7.44 20.94 20.16

Computer 49.85 3.43 53.28 25.26 17.50 42.76 10.51 24.59

Total (A) 13,018.19 19,693.58 62.41 32,649.36 5,448.47 1,133.89 51.32 6,531.03 26,118.33 7,569.72

P.Y Total 12,717.24 310.52 9.57 13,018.19 4,664.34 793.22 9.09 5,448.47 7,569.72 8,052.91

B
Intangible 
assets

Software 5.00 109.58 18.85 90.72 7.30 2.04 9.34 81.39 102.28

Total (B) 109.58 18.85 90.72 7.30 2.04 9.34 81.39 102.28

P.Y Total 109.58 109.58 7.30 7.30 102.28

C
Capital work 
in progress
Building 1,356.36 1,356.36 1,356.36

Plant and 
Machinery

5,560.05 4,282.77 1,277.29 1,277.29 5,560.05

Total (C) 6,916.42 5,639.13 1,277.29 1,277.29 6,916.42

P.Y Total 309.62 6,916.42 309.62 6,916.42 6,916.42 309.62

D
Intangible 
assets under 
Development
P.Y Total 37.98 37.98 37.98

Current Year 
Total (A + B 
+ C)

20,044.19 19,693.58 5,720.40 34,017.37 5,455.76 1,135.92 51.32 6,540.36 27,477.00 14,588.42

Previous Year 
Total

13,064.85 7,336.52 357.18 20,044.19 4,664.34 800.52 9.09 5,455.76 14,588.42 8,400.51

CWIP aging schedule

Current Year Previous Year

Assets Name Group CWIP
Less than 1 

Yrs.
1-2 

Years
2-3 

Years

More 
than 3 

Yrs.
Total

Less 
than 1 

Yrs

1-2 
Years

2-3 
Years

More 
than 3 

Yrs
Total

Building Buildings
Projects in 
progress

1356.36 1356.36

Plant and 
Machniery

Plant and 
Machinery

Projects in 
progress

1,277.29 5560.05 5560.05

Total 1,277.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6916.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 6916.41
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Note No. 11 Non-current investments  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Non-Trade Investment(Valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Other non-current investments (Unquoted)

In Others
Other investments long-term unquoted non-trade (Lower of cost and 
Market value)

368.16 351.93

Gross Investment 368.16 351.93

Net Investment 368.16 351.93

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 368.16 351.93

Note No. 12 Loans and advances  in lakhs

Particulars
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term

Other loans and advances

Tds receivable 27.23 40.70

Tuff receivable 54.74 54.74

Prepaid expenses (Unsecured) 124.16 20.54

Fixed deposit with bank 345.77 263.45

Rips subsidy receivable 32.86 32.86

Duties and taxes for gst 1,881.34 616.94

Tcs 3.56 1.95

Interest accrued on AVVNL deposit 4.12 3.62

Loan to employees 21.69 33.03

License Receivable 0.12 0.12

Capital Subsidy Receivable 310.45

IGST Refund Receivable 48.79

RODTEP/DDBK Drawback 7.51

MP Interest Subsidy Receivable 443.89

345.77 2,593.71 263.45 1,171.25

Total 345.77 2,593.71 263.45 1,171.25

Note No. 13 Other non-current assets  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Security Deposit 221.27 135.17

Other Assets

Miscellaneous expenditure not written off
Preoperative expenses 524.09

Advance for capital goods 2,014.90 2,919.97

Total 2,014.90 2,919.97

Total 2,236.17 3,579.22

Note No. 13(a) Other non-current assets:Security Deposit  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Security Deposit 221.27 135.17

Total 221.27 135.17

Note No. 14 Inventories  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

(Valued at cost or NRV unless otherwise stated)

Raw Material 3,617.60 1,435.97

WIP 4,552.28 3,208.55

Finished Goods 5,488.45 4,039.14

Stores and spares 292.90 352.35

Total 13,951.23 9,036.01
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Note No. 15 Trade receivables  in lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

Secured, Considered good

Unsecured, Considered Good 10,085.77 6,624.66

Doubtful

Allowance for doubtful receivables

Total 10,085.77 6,624.66

(Current Year)  in lakhs

Particulars

Payment date not defined(Outstanding for following periods from due 
date of Transaction

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 

years
Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables (considered 
good)

9,465.29 167.19 429.72 10.33 13.24 10,085.77

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables 
(considered doubtful)

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered 
good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered 
doubtful

(v) Provision for doubtful receivables

(Previous Year)  in lakhs

Particulars

Payment date not defined(Outstanding for following periods from due 
date of Transaction

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 

years
Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables (considered 
good)

150.64 11.99 6.98 6.48 176.09

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables 
(considered doubtful)

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered 
good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered 
doubtful

(v) Provision for doubtful receivables

Note No. 16 Cash and cash equivalents  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Balance with banks
Other deposits with banks 4.55 3.59

Total 4.55 3.59

Cash in hand

Cash in hand 44.33 2.80

Total 44.33 2.80

Total 48.88 6.39
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Note No. 17 Revenue from operations  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Sale of products
Finish Sales 36,032.60 26,986.41

Grey sales 3,745.75 1,553.25

Yarn Sales 170.28 1,097.00

39,948.63 29,636.66

Sale of services 1,708.21 2,322.19

Revenue from operations 41,656.84 31,958.85

Less: Excise duty

Net revenue from operations 41,656.84 31,958.85

Note No. 18 Other income  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Interest Income

Other interest income 22.90 21.98

22.90 21.98

Net gain/loss on sale of investmentsProfit on sale of fixed assets 7.91 2.02Profit on Currency Fluctuation (32.54) 1.12

(24.63) 3.14

Other non-operating income
Scrap sale 418.21

Insurance claim 12.85

Commission Income 76.84

Other receipts 54.96 46.80

Export Incentives 126.32 12.47

181.28 567.17

Total 179.55 592.29

Note No. 19 Cost of material Consumed  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Inventory at the beginning

Raw Material 1,735.97 2,145.85

1,735.97 2,145.85

Add:Purchase

Raw Material 23,821.55 18,814.85

23,821.55 18,814.85

Less:-Inventory at the end

Raw Material 3,617.60 1,735.97

3,617.60 1,735.97

Total 21,939.92 19,224.73

Details of material consumed  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Raw Material

Consumption of raw material 20,021.64 17,500.30

Consumption of dyes and chemial 1,918.28 1,724.43

21,939.92 19,224.73

Total 21,939.92 19,224.73

Details of inventory  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Raw Material

Consumption of raw material 3,421.28 1,459.10

Consumption of dyes and chemial 196.32 276.87

3,617.60 1,735.97

Total 3,617.60 1,735.97
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Details of purchase  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Raw Material

Consumption of raw material 21,983.82 17,034.13

Consumption of dyes and chemial 1,837.73 1,780.72

23,821.55 18,814.85

Total 23,821.55 18,814.85

Note No. 20 Purchase of stock-in-trade  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Finish Fabrics Purchased 10,216.10 6,999.44

Finish Fabrics Purchased (1,595.01) (1,117.28)

Total 8,621.09 5,882.16

Note No. 21 Changes in inventories  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Inventory at the end of the year
Finished Goods 5,488.45 4,039.14

Work-in-Progress 4,552.28 3,208.55

10,040.73 7,247.69

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods 4,039.14 2,533.81

Work-in-Progress 3,208.55 2,119.77
7,247.69 4,653.57

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Finished Goods (1,449.31) (1,505.33)

Work-in-Progress (1,343.73) (1,088.78)

(2,793.04) (2,594.12)

Note No. 22 Employee benefit expenses  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Salaries and Wages

Salaries paid 444.88 325.77

Wages paid 948.42 779.89

1,393.30 1,105.66

Contribution to provident and other fund
P.f and e.s.i contribution 117.81 109.80

Gratuity 28.34 25.56

146.15 135.36

Staff welfare Expenses
Staff Welfare Expenses 32.30 11.81

Bonus 38.37 30.92

70.67 42.73

Total 1,610.12 1,283.75

Note No. 23 Finance costs  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Interest

Interest on term loan 512.22 485.68

Interest paid to bank on cc limit 525.04 485.89

Interest on car loan 15.88 12.31

Interest on u\loan and others 29.33 26.62

Other interest charges 87.32 20.28

Interest on Bill Discounting 603.48 239.88

Interest on Yarn Purchase 67.56 26.10

1,840.83 1,296.76

Other Borrowing costs

Bank charges 58.15 16.36

Processing and stamping 6.79 10.52

64.94 26.88

Total 1,905.77 1,323.64
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Note No. 24 Depreciation and amortization expenses  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Depreciation on tangible assets 1,133.89 793.22

Amortisation of intangible assets 2.04 7.30

Total 1,135.92 800.52

Note No. 25 Other expenses  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Audit fees 4.97 3.80

Administrative expenses 454.66 357.14

Selling and distribution expenses 210.86 149.76

Manufacturing service costs 4,286.19 3,680.29

Total 4,956.68 4,190.98

Note No. 25(a) Other expenses:Audit fees  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Statutory audit fees 4.35 2.25

Internal audit fees 0.25

Tax audit fees 0.75

Stock audit 0.62 0.55

Total 4.97 3.80

Note No. 25(b) Other expenses: Administrative expenses  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

 Miscellaneous Expenses 5.29 2.53

 Telephone & Mobile Expenses 2.25 1.83

 Vehicle Expenses 10.45 10.97

Building Repair 3.05 3.61

Computer and printer expenses 0.17 1.35

CSR Expenses 25.50 10.50

Director remuneration 234.00 198.00

Director Sitting Fees 2.25 2.55

Donetion expences 3.50 2.23

Festival celebration expenses 12.96 1.45

Fine Paid 0.89 1.20

Government license fees 12.81 2.73

Gst and other late fees

GST Demand 0.09 2.51

Insurance expenses 36.92 27.88

IPO Expenses 7.57

IT Expenses 10.33 5.38

Keyman Insurance 41.41 34.92

Legal and professional expenses 23.21 18.86

Membership fees 1.78 0.20Office rent 12.28 7.93

Other administrative expenses 2.08 4.50

Postage expenses 3.95 2.24

Printing and stationery 0.62 4.67

Rates & Taxes 0.15 0.29

Software Expenses 1.35 0.24

Water expenses 1.12 1.02ISO / Other Certification Charges 6.25

Total 454.66 357.14



                                                                                                                                                        
  ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

                                                                                                         74

Note No. 25(c) Other expenses: Selling and distribution expenses  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Advertising expenses 8.09 18.14

Freight Expenses 92.17 12.01

Grading and packing expenses 12.07 25.98

Hotel Expense 3.85

Job and agency commission 15.48 27.34

Tour and travelling expenses 64.09 62.43

Godown Rent 18.96

Total 210.86 149.76

Note No. 25(d) Other expenses: Manufacturing service costs  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Agro Waste Expenses 239.81 183.98

Electric expenses 2.36 9.56

Job charges 2,258.62 1,875.92

Oil and lubricant 3.43 3.67

Other manufacturing service cost 47.69 2.98

Power and fuel 1,129.87 1,052.47

Repairs and maintenance of other assets 25.19 21.98

Stores and spares 402.69 344.30

Transport expenses 122.81 153.07

Water Expenses 46.52 32.35

Testing Expenses 7.20

Total 4,286.19 3,680.29

Note No. 26 Current tax  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Current tax pertaining to current year 638.08 579.00

Total 638.08 579.00

Note No. 27 Deferred tax  in lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Deferred tax 490.20 40.83

Total 490.20 40.83

Note No. 28 Earning Per Share  in lakhs

Particulars
Before Extraordinary items After Extraordinary items

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

BasicProfit after tax (A) 3,331.65 1,819.61 3,331.65 1,819.61

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (B) 2,20,18,260 1,82,17,260 2,20,18,260 1,82,17,260

Basic EPS (A / B) 15.13 9.99 15.13 9.99

DilutedProfit after tax (A) 3,331.65 1,819.61 3,331.65 1,819.61

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (B) 2,20,18,260 1,82,17,260 2,20,18,260 1,82,17,260

Diluted EPS (A / B) 15.13 9.99 15.13 9.99

Face value per share 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
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SWARAJ SUITING LIMITED
 (CIN : L18101RJ2003PLC018359) Registered Office:
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